
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 20 June 2019

Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

12 June 2019

PART 1
1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
ii) Other Interests

3. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 10)

4. Appointments to Outside Bodies (Pages 11 - 18)

5. Performance Framework 2019/20 and Annual Report 2018/19 (Pages 19 - 110)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of The Executive
Councillor A McKeown (Chair) Councillor D Greenhalgh (Vice-Chair)
Councillor A Barrow Councillor F Sloman
Councillor J Todd

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE

Meeting: Thursday, 14 February 2019 at 6.00 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion 
Gardens, Buxton

Present: Councillor T Ashton (Chair) 

Councillors T Kemp, J McCabe and E Thrane

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor A McKeown

19/43 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations of interest made.

19/44 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Executive held on 6 December 2018 be approved as 
a correct record.

19/45 THIRD QUARTER (PROVISIONAL OUTTURN) FINANCIAL, 
PROCUREMENT & PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2018/19
(Agenda Item 4)

The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st December 
(“Third Quarter 2018/19”). The report was considered by the Corporate 
Select Committee on 11 May 2019. The position was summarised as 
follows:

Subject Headline
Finance The finance headlines for the third quarter were:

Performance against Budget
 The General Fund budget for 2018/19 was projected to be 

underspent by £688,600 at the quarter 3 stage  
Efficiency Programme
 There was a potential shortfall projected against the general 

fund efficiency target of £581,000 (General Fund) – with 
£408,250 achieved to date.  Any shortfall was expected to be 
offset by staff vacancy/corporate savings. The HRA 2018/19 
efficiency target of £245,000 had been achieved through the 
reduction in minimum revenue provision when setting the 
MTFP.

Housing Revenue Account
 The Housing Revenue Account was projected to be in surplus 

(against budget) by £1,024,070 
Capital Programme

High Peak Borough Council

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



The Executive
Thursday, 14 February 2019

 The Capital Programme budget for 2018/19 as revised was 
£7.88 million.  The outturn was anticipated to be a £3.26 
million underspend as a result of re-profiling the Asset 
Management Plan.

 The HRA Capital Programme for 2018/19 as revised was 
£4.07 million.  The outturn was anticipated to be a £0.68 
million underspend.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31st December 2018 totalled £22.9 

million.
 Council borrowing at 31st December 2018 totalled £66.8 

million.
 The Council’s net interest receipts general fund budget was 

marginally overachieved by £16,990 with a £32,360 surplus on 
the HRA

Revenue Collection
 84.9% of Council Tax was collected by 31st December 2018, 

compared to 85.2% for the same period last year.
 83.2% of Business Rates was collected by 31st December 

2018 compared with 81.9% for the same period last year (due 
to payment in full received on one account in 2018/19)

Procurement The procurement headlines for the third quarter were:
 18 procurement activities were completed 
 At the 31st December 2018, 62% of procurement activity 

undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council paid 96% 
of its invoices within 30 days

Performance The performance headlines for the third quarter were:
  Performance in respect of 70% of the key performance 

indicators were on track
 Of the 22 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, two were 

completed, two were awaiting a decision, and the remainder 
were classified as ‘Green’; and

 The Council received 167 complaints, 214 comments and 121 
compliments in the Second Quarter. Repeat complaints and 
response times both on track 

Options considered:

Detailed analysis was contained within the appendices to the report.

RESOLVED:

That the Third Quarter 2018/19 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of the 
covering report be noted.

19/46 2019/20 BUDGET & UPDATED MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2019/20 
TO 2022/23
(Agenda Item 5)

Page 4



The Executive
Thursday, 14 February 2019

The purpose of the report was to consider the proposed 2019/20 Budget, 
the updated Medium-Term Financial Plan (2019/20 – 2022/23), the 2019/20 
Capital Strategy, the updated 30-year HRA Business Plan, proposed Fees 
and Charges for 2019/20 and the 2019/20 Procurement Forward Plan. The 
report was considered by the Corporate Select Committee on 11 February 
2019.

Options considered:

There were no options to consider at this stage. Options would be need to 
be developed in order to close the financial deficits highlighted in the 
updated plan.

RESOLVED:

That the Executive support the following recommendations to Council:

 General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget for 
2019/20 as detailed in Appendix A (section 8)

 Revised Medium-Term Financial Plan (2019/20 to 2022/23) as 
detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital Programme 
(attached at Annex A) for the General Fund and HRA

 Capital Strategy detailed in Appendix B

 Updated HRA 30 Year Business Plan detailed in Appendix C

 Fees and Charges for 2019/20 as detailed in Appendix D

 Procurement Forward Plan for 2019/20, providing the authority to 
procure based on procurement activity detailed in Appendix E

 A Band D Council Tax of £191.76 for 2019/20 (an increase of 
2.9% from 2018/19)

 HRA charges as follows:

- Dwellings rents to reduce by an average of 1% (over 52 
weeks) from £70.00 to £69.40 average per week (over 53 
weeks)

- Garage rents to be increased by 5% (over 53 weeks) from 
£6.47 to £6.79 average per week

- Other Charges including service charges to increase by a 
maximum of 5% for current tenants

- Fuel charges at individual blocks have been reviewed and the 
2019/20 charge is based on 2017/18 actual fuel usage/prices, 
charged on an individual scheme basis. 

 Note that the Chief Finance Officer's view is that the level of 
reserves are adequate for the Council based on this budget and 
the circumstances in place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A 
section 7) Page 5

file:///C:/Users/chazeldene/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Documents%20and%20Settings/cstone/Local%20Settings/astokes/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/9RF23P99/SMDC%20-%20Budget%202012-13%20&%20MTFP%20App%20A%20(15-02-12).doc


The Executive
Thursday, 14 February 2019

19/47 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT - ADOPTION
(Agenda Item 6)

The report advised the Executive of the results of consultation on the 
Council’s updated Statement of Community Involvement. The report was 
considered by the Economy and Growth Select Committee on 7 February 
2019.

Options considered:

There were two options:

Option 1 – Decline to recommend a Statement of Community Involvement 
for adoption. Local planning authorities are required under Section 18 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) to produce a 
Statement of Community Involvement. Not recommended.

Option 2 – Recommend any modifications to the updated Statement of 
Community Involvement, consulted on November / December 2018, and the 
document’s subsequent adoption by full Council. The Statement of 
Community Involvement (SCI) describes how the Council would seek to 
engage with residents, businesses and other organisations in decision 
making on planning policy documents and planning applications in the part 
of the High Peak outside of the Peak District National Park. Recommended.

RESOLVED:

That the Executive recommends to Council:

1. That the contents of the report be noted.

2. That the two late representations received be accepted.

3. That the Statement of Community Involvement be approved - subject to 
the proposed modifications set out in the report - such that a final version 
of the document can be considered for adoption by full council on 20 
February 2019.

19/48 TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION AND INVESTMENT PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 7)

The purpose of the report was to update Councillors on proposals for the 
Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme and sought 
approval for the submission of funding bids to support delivery. The report 
was considered by the Economy and Growth Select Committee on 7 
February 2019.

Options considered:

Option 1 (recommended) – that the Council notes the approach in the Town 
Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme and approves the 
submission of a funding bid to the Future High Street Fund to support Page 6



The Executive
Thursday, 14 February 2019

improvements to Buxton Town Centre and a submission to HLF and the 
Highways England Designated Fund to support improvements to Glossop 
Town Centre. 

Option 2 (not recommended) – that the Council does not approve the 
submission of funding bids to support improvements to Town Centres. This 
is not recommended. 

RESOLVED:

1. That the update on the Town Centre Regeneration and Investment 
Programme be noted.

2. That bids to the Heritage Lottery Fund and Highways England 
Designated Fund to support regeneration and investment in Glossop be 
submitted.

3. That a bid to the Future High Street Fund to support regeneration and 
investment in Buxton be submitted.

19/49 ACCELERATED HOUSING DELIVERY PROGRAMME - SOFT MARKET 
TESTING
(Agenda Item 8)

The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ approval to take forward the 
marketing of Council owned sites identified in the Accelerated Housing 
Delivery Programme (AHDP), by soft market testing these using the Homes 
England (HE) HCA procurement process. The report was considered by the 
Economy and Growth Select Committee on 7 February 2019.

Options considered:

To not approve using the Homes England HCA procurement framework to 
soft market testing council owned sites. The council owns a number of sites 
allocated for housing. These sites may require a more imaginative 
mechanism for delivery of viable housing development. By not investigating 
these through soft market testing, the council would not be informed of the 
best delivery options and as such, the sites were likely to stall and delivery 
be delayed. Therefore, not taking action to develop them was not 
recommended.

To approve using the Homes England HCA procurement framework to soft 
market test council own sites. By soft market testing the various sites the 
council could be informed of the best possible mechanisms to deliver viable 
housing development on council land and accelerate development. By using 
the HE framework the council would be gaining direct access to 
professionals and developers who are currently working in the housing 
market and could best advise on the viability and appetite for delivery 
mechanisms within the Borough. Therefore, this option was recommended.

Page 7



The Executive
Thursday, 14 February 2019

RESOLVED:

That the Council enter into an agreement with Homes England to soft 
market test a number of Council owned sites throughout the Borough as set 
out in paragraphs 3.4 and 3.5 of the report be approved.

19/50 GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK
(Agenda Item 9)

The report notified Councillors of the consultation on the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework and sought approval for the Council’s 
approach in terms of a response and ongoing engagement. The report was 
considered by the Economy and Growth Select Committee on 7 February 
2019.

Options considered:

Option 1 (recommended) – that Councillors note the details of the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework and support the proposed approach for the 
Council to respond. 

Option 2 (not recommended) – that Councillors decide not to respond with 
the consultation. This option would not allow the Council to influence the 
emerging strategy.

RESOLVED:

1. That the proposals of the consultation be noted.

2. That the proposed approach to respond to the consultation as set out in 
Section 5.1 and Chapter 7 of the report be supported. 

19/51 HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL SUPPORT FOR KEEP BRITAIN TIDY
(Agenda Item 10)

The purpose of the report was to inform the Executive of the plans of the 
Council to promote the Keep Britain Tidy (KBT) Great British Spring Clean 
2019. The report was considered by the Community Select Committee on 6 
February 2019.

Options considered:

To support the proposal of increased communication to encourage more 
residents and groups to take part in the Great British Spring Clean 
(recommended).

To not support for the proposal of increased communication to encourage 
more community groups to take part in the Great British Spring Clean (not 
recommended).

Page 8



The Executive
Thursday, 14 February 2019

RESOLVED:

1. Supports the enhanced promotional activities which will be undertaken to 
support and encourage more residents and local groups to get involved 
in the campaign be supported.

2. That the proposed review of litter bin provision which will be undertaken 
during the campaign be noted.

19/52 TO RESOLVE THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM 
THE MEETING FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS BECAUSE THERE MAY BE 
DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN 
PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.
(Agenda Item 11)

RESOLVED:

That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

19/53 TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 12)

The exempt minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 6 December
2018 were approved as a correct record.

The meeting concluded at 6.25 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to The Executive

20 June 2019

TITLE: Appointments to Outside Bodies

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor A McKeown - Council Leader

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon – Senior Officer (Governance 
and Member Support)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendix A Attached – Outside Bodies

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to appoint councillors to Outside Bodies.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That councillors be appointed to the various outside bodies, as detailed in 
Appendix A.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Local Government Act 2000 and subsequent regulations prescribe that 
the Executive should make appointments to all those outside bodies whose 
functions are executive functions.  All other appointments should be made by 
Council.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Provide quality services in partnership with communities.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 Statutory guidance for authorities operating executive arrangements, states 
that the Executive should make appointments to all those outside bodies 
whose functions are executive functions.  All other appointments should be 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



made by Council.  Appendix A lists the organisations for which representatives 
are appointed.  

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Appendix A – Outside Bodies (attached) Linden Vernon
Senior Officer (Governance and 
Member Support)
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 12



APPENDIX A

Organisation Secretary Address Tel. No. e-mail address
Frequeny of 
Meetings Venue Aims of the Organisation

2019-2020  
Representative(s)

East Midlands 
Councils 

Lisa Hopkins, PA to 
Stuart Young, 
Executive Director

East Midlands 
Councils, First Floor 
Office, South Annexe, 
Pera Business Park, 
Nottingham Road, 
Melton Mowbray, 
Leicestershire LE13 
0PB

01664 
502630

lisa.hopkins@emc
ouncils.gov.uk Bi-annual Melton Mowbray

The consultative forum for all 46 
local authorities in the East 
Midlands.  It represents the interest 
of local councils to national 
government and other 
organisations. Leader or Deputy Leader

Derby and 
Derbyshire 
Strategic 
Leadership Forum

David Walsh, 
Constitutional & 
Civic Services 
Manager Annual Various locations

Promote the interests of local 
authorities in Derby and Derbyshire, 

Leader - substitute 
Deputy Leader

LGA General 
Assembly

Local Government 
House, Smith Square, 
London, SW1P 3HZ

020 7664 
3000

memberservices@
local.gov.uk Annual London

To promote the interests of English 
& Welsh local authorities. To 
promote better local government. Leader or Deputy Leader

Derbyshire 
Partnership Forum Policy & Research

Chief Executive's 
Office, County Hall, 
Matlock, DE4 3AG

01629 
538859

policy@derbyshire.
gov.uk Quarterly

County Hall, 
Matlock

To improve understanding, 
communication and coordination of 
activities between partners, to 
develop, deliver and implement the 
Community Strategy and to oversee 
the development, implementation 
and evaluation of the Derbyshire 
LAA. Leader or Deputy Leader

Local Government 
Information Unit 
(LGIU) Assembly

Debra Stanislas - 
Corporate 
Governance 
Administrator

3rd Floor, 251 
Pentonville Road, 
London, N1 9NG

0207 554 
2800 debra.stanislas@lgiAnnual London

To strengthen local democracy to 
put citizens in control of their own 
lives, communities and local 
services. Cll A. McKeown

P
age 13

mailto:lisa.hopkins@emcouncils.gov.uk
mailto:lisa.hopkins@emcouncils.gov.uk
mailto:memberservices@local.gov.uk
mailto:memberservices@local.gov.uk
mailto:policy@derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:policy@derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:debra.stanislas@lgiu.org.uk


Organisation Secretary Address Tel. No. e-mail address
Frequeny of 
Meetings Venue Aims of the Organisation

2019-2020  
Representative(s)

Peak District 
Partnership Giles Dann

Derbyshire Dales 
District Council, Town 
Hall, Bank Road, 
Matlock, Derbyshire 
DE4 3NN

01629 
761211

giles.dann@derby
shiredales.gov.uk 3 per year Bakewell

To bring together key public, private 
& voluntary & community sector 
organisations to plan & develop 
services in response to community 
needs & priorities. Leader or Deputy Leader

Safer Communities 
Board Julia Ashbrook

Community Safety 
unit, Commissioning, 
Communities and 
Policy, DCC, County 
Hall, Matlock DE4 
3AG

01629 
536626

julia.ashbrook@de
rbyshire.gov.uk 3 per year

County Hall, 
Matlock & Police 
HQ, Ripley Cllr Todd

Glossop/Bad Vilbel 
Twinning 
Association Peter Greenhalgh

10 Edward Street
Glossop
Derbyshire
SK13 7AF
10 Edward Street
Glossop
Derbyshire
SK13 7AF 01457 

861319 n/a 8-10 per year Various
To promote & encourage links 
between the two towns. The Mayor

Buxton/Bad 
Nauheim Twinning 
Association TBC TBC TBC bnbuxton@hotmail. TBC TBC

To promote & encourage links 
between the two towns. The Mayor

Fairfield Endowed 
School Trustees Caitlin Bisknell

124 Brown Edge 
Road, Buxton, 
Derbyshire SK17 7AB

01298 
212369 / 
07983 
246912

festgrants@gmail.
com 5 per year Buxton

Grants to young people living in 
Fairfield.

Cllr Quinn (May 2019) & 
Mr M Bisknell (May 
2019)

P
age 14

mailto:giles.dann@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
mailto:giles.dann@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
mailto:julia.ashbrook@derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:julia.ashbrook@derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:festgrants@gmail.com
mailto:festgrants@gmail.com


Organisation Secretary Address Tel. No. e-mail address
Frequeny of 
Meetings Venue Aims of the Organisation

2019-2020  
Representative(s)

Mary Ellen Allen 
Charity Mr T Lawton

8 Spinney Close, 
Glossop, SK13 7BR n/a 2 per year

Mayors Parlour, 
Town Hall, Glossop Relief of hardship for elderly people.

Cllrs Oakley & J 
Wharmby

High Peak 
Community and 
Voluntary Support Nigel Caldwell

Dunbar House, 105 
Buxton Road, Whaley 
Bridge, High Peak 
SK23 7HX

01663 
735350

nigel@highpeakcv
s.org.uk 6 per year

High Peak CVS, 
Whaley Bridge

Develop capacity/quality of 
community/voluntary sector in High 
Peak.  Establish/nurture effective 
working relationships between and 
within sectors. Provide services to 
meet needs of community and 
voluntary sector within High Peak.  
Develop confident, effective 
voluntary/community groups able to 
influence local development.  Create 
secure & effective CVS in line with 
member needs.  Support 
voluntary/community sector to be 
influential & equal partner within 
partnerships relevant to High Peak. Cllr Todd

Connex Community 
Support Gill Geddes

16 Eagle Parade, 
Buxton, SK17 6EQ 01298 23970

gill@connex.org.u
k Quarterly

Buxton or 
Ashbourne

Provide support services to the 
people and communities of the 
Derbyshire Dales and High Peak, 
making lives happier, healthier and 
more fulfilled. Cllr Savage

The Bureau
Sophie Glinka Chief 
Officer

Bank House, 22 Henry 
Street, Glossop. SK13 
8BW

01457 
865722

sophie.glinka@the
.bureau.org.uk 12 per year

Bank House, 22 
Henry Street, 
Glossop. SK13 
8BW

To identify and link together 
community needs and solutions to 
enable people to live independently 
and improve the quality of life for 
local communities Cllr Baker

P
age 15

mailto:nigel@highpeakcvs.org.uk
mailto:nigel@highpeakcvs.org.uk
mailto:gill@connex.org.uk
mailto:gill@connex.org.uk
mailto:sophie.glinka@the.bureau.org.uk
mailto:sophie.glinka@the.bureau.org.uk


Organisation Secretary Address Tel. No. e-mail address
Frequeny of 
Meetings Venue Aims of the Organisation

2019-2020  
Representative(s)

New Mills & District 
Volunteer Centre

Ed Mountfield 
Company Secretary 
and Centre 
Manager

c/o 33/35 Union Road, 
New Mills, SK22 3EL

01663 
744196 ed@nmvc.org Bi-monthly

33/35 Union Road, 
New Mills

The provision of a wide range of 
essential frontline preventative 
services Cllr Ashton

Tintwistle 
Community Centre 
Committee Ms B M Lowrie

Tintwistle Parish 
Council, Village Hall, 
Sexton Street, 
Tintwistle, SK13 1JN

tpcounciloffices@a
ol.com

meets 
infrequently as 
and when 
required.

Village Hall, Sexton 
Street, Tintwistle Cllr Baker

High Peak 
Community Safety 
Partnership 
Strategy Group David Smith

Buxton Town Hall, 
Market Place, Buxton 
SK17 6EL

01298 28400 
ex. 4165

david.smith@high
peak.gov.uk Quarterly Various

Improve the delivery of crime 
reduction initiatives & activities 
across the district of High Peak. Cllr Todd

Active Derbyshire Active Derbyshire

2 Godkin House, Park 
Road, Ripley 
Derbyshire DE5 3EF

01773 
748907

'derbyshiresport@de
rbyshire.gov.uk'

To work together through sport to 
improve the quality of life for the 
people of Derbyshire. Cllr Quinn

Whaley Bridge 
Sports Association Mrs Brenda Wise

Mechanics Institute, 
Market Street, Whaley 
Bridge, SK23 7AA

01663 
733068

whaleybridgetownc
ouncil@supanet.c
om 2 per year

Sports Pavilion, 
Park Road, Whaley 
Bridge

To manage the Sports Pavilion and 
the floodlit Multi Use Games Area.

Cllr Shannon-Kate 
Thomson

Chapel Mobile 
Physiotherapy 
Services Mrs Lesley Boler

58 Warmbrook Road, 
Chapel en le Frith, 
High Peak SK23 0NW

01298 
816102

laboler132@aol.co
m Bi-monthly

Meeting Room, 
Chinley 
Independent 
Church, Chinley 

To provide free physiotherapy 
treatment to patients in their own 
home. Cllrs Sizeland & Young

Tameside & 
Glossop Integrated 
Care NHS 
Foundation Trust

Mr Steve Parsons, 
Company Secretary

Tameside & Glossop 
Acute Services, 
Tameside General 
Hospital, Fountain 
Street, Ashton-under-
lyne, OL6 9RW

0161 922 
6007

Steve.Parsons@tg
h.nhs.uk Quarterly

Werneth House, 
Tamesdie General 
Hospital Cllr A McKeown

P
age 16

mailto:ed@nmvc.org
mailto:tpcounciloffices@aol.com
mailto:tpcounciloffices@aol.com
mailto:david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk
mailto:david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk
mailto:whaleybridgetowncouncil@supanet.com
mailto:whaleybridgetowncouncil@supanet.com
mailto:whaleybridgetowncouncil@supanet.com
mailto:laboler132@aol.com
mailto:laboler132@aol.com
mailto:Steve.Parsons@tgh.nhs.uk
mailto:Steve.Parsons@tgh.nhs.uk


Organisation Secretary Address Tel. No. e-mail address
Frequeny of 
Meetings Venue Aims of the Organisation

2019-2020  
Representative(s)

Glossop & District 
AgeUK

Mrs J Ashley, 
Secretary

Bradbury Community 
House, Market Street,, 
Glossop SK13 8AR

joyce@glossopage
concern.org.uk Monthly

Bradbury 
Coimmunity House, 
Market Street, 
Glossop

To improve later life for everyone 
through our information and advice, 
campaigns, products, training and 
research.

Cllr Oakley

Glossop Heritage 
Trust Tony Wright (Chair)

c/o Aspinall Wright, 65 
High Street West, 
Glossop, SK13 8AZ

01457 
854645

aw@awandco.co.u
k bi-monthly

To show the way in which the town, 
its setting & its people have 
developed in the known ten 
thousand years of its history, so that 
both residents & visitors are 
encouraged to gain a better 
understanding of its unique 
character & tradition. Cllr Oakley

High Peak Theatre 
Trust Limited Susan Howe

Head of Finance, High 
Peak Theatre Trust 
Limited, Water Strreet, 
Buxton SK17 6XN

01663 
744760 4/5 per year

Lee Wood Hotel, 
Buxton Arts entertainment. Cllr Savage

Trans Pennine Trail
Mandy Loach, TPT 
Officer

P.O. Box 597, 
Barnsley, S70 9EW

transpenninetrail@b
arnsley.gov.uk Annually

Rota between 
partner authorities

A coast to coast multi-user trail. The 
TPT partnership continues to 
promote and seek the further 
development of the trail. Cllr Gardner

Vision Buxton Martin Wragg

c/o Pricketts 
Solicitors, 12 
Hardwick Street, 
Buxton, SK17 6DH 

01298 
73003

administrator@visi
onbuxton.co.uk Various

Lee Wood Hotel, 
Buxton Cllr Todd

Peak District Rural 
Forum

Mrs Amanda 
Brown, DEP Co-
ordinator

Derbyshire County 
Council, Room 78, 
County Hall, Smedley 
Street, Matlock, DE4 
3AG/

01629 
533190

amanda.brown@d
erbyshire.co.uk bi-monthly various

To stimulate economic development 
& regeneration activity in the Peak 
District and responsible for 
economic activity in the area on 
behalf of the Derbyshire Dales & 
High Peak LSP. Cllr Greenhalgh

P
age 17

mailto:joyce@glossopageconcern.org.uk
mailto:joyce@glossopageconcern.org.uk
mailto:aw@awandco.co.uk
mailto:aw@awandco.co.uk
mailto:transpenninetrail@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:transpenninetrail@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:administrator@visionbuxton.co.uk
mailto:administrator@visionbuxton.co.uk
mailto:amanda.brown@derbyshire.co.uk
mailto:amanda.brown@derbyshire.co.uk


Organisation Secretary Address Tel. No. e-mail address
Frequeny of 
Meetings Venue Aims of the Organisation

2019-2020  
Representative(s)

Visit Peak District & 
Derbyshire 

Lindsay Rae, 
Marketing Peak 
District and 
Derbyshire

Commerce House, 
Millennium Way, 
Chesterfield S41 8ND

01246 
212924 lindsay.rae@marke Quarterly, plus so    Bakewell

To deliver a range of tourism 
services in agreement with the Peak 
District & Derbyshire Destination 
Management Partnership. Cllr Greenhalgh

High Peak and 
Hope Valley 
Community Rail 
Partnership Andrew Walker

c/o Derbyshire 
County Council, 
County Hall, 
Matlock, DE4 3AG

01629 
538093

andrew.walker@d
erbyshire.gov.uk Quarterly Various

To address the rail transport 
needs of people living in the 
Partnership's area Cllr Kerr

Buxton Crescent 
& Thermal Spa 
Heritage Trust

Louise Cross

The University of 
Derby
1 Devonshire Road
Buxton
SK17 6RY

01298 33844

lcross@buxtoncre
scent.com

The Devonshire 
Dome, Buxton

To promote for the benefit of the 
public the conservation, protection 
and improvement of the physical 
and natural environment 
comprising the Buxton Crescent & 
Thermal Spa

Cllr Todd

P
age 18

mailto:lindsay.rae@marketingpdd.com
mailto:andrew.walker@derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.walker@derbyshire.gov.uk
mailto:lcross@buxtoncrescent.com
mailto:lcross@buxtoncrescent.com


HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to The Executive

20 June 2019

Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1: Annual Report 2018/19 
Appendix 2: Performance Framework 2019/20

1.        Reason for the Report:

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

 Provide members with an opportunity to scrutinise the draft Performance 
Framework and associated targets for 2019/20

 Present the findings from the Annual Report and how these have 
influenced the framework

 Outline the suggested approach and timescale for the development of a 
new 4-year Corporate Plan.         

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Performance Framework 2019/20 and Annual Report 2018/19 be 
approved.

3. Executive Summary 

3.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan articulates the aims, objectives and priority 
actions, which the Council is working to achieve. Its delivery is measured 
through the Performance Framework, which has at its centre the three pillars 
of value for money - efficiency, economy and effectiveness.     

TITLE: Performance Framework 2019/20 and Annual 
Report 2018/19    

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 
Partner   

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



3.2 This report seeks to take stock at the end of the 2015-2019 Corporate Plan 
and provides an interim framework whilst a new Corporate Plan for 2019-2023 
is being developed.  

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The purpose of the report is to enable the monitoring of progress against the 
Council’s corporate priorities. As such this report has linkages to each of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan aims.   

5. Options

5.1 Members are asked to consider the proposed targets and to make 
amendments if they consider that they are necessary. 

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies

6.4 Financial Considerations
Effective performance management contributes to the Council’s 
financial objectives 

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
Corporate and Operational managers have proposed the targets 
within this report 

6.8 Risk Assessment
A robust performance framework is a critical tool in controlling and 
mitigating risks.     

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact details

Performance Framework 2019/20
Annual Report 2018/19

Available on request V Higgins, Ext 4057 

Page 20



7. Background and Introduction 

7.1 The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2015-2019) articulated the aims, 
objectives and priority actions, which the Council was working to achieve 
over that period. The plan required a new performance framework that could 
measure its delivery and also aid effective scrutiny through more focused 
and balanced reporting; celebrating success and promoting improvement.  

7.2 The 2016/17 Performance Framework was built around the Council’s key 
objectives whilst also ensuring that the three pillars of value for money 
(efficiency, economy and effectiveness) remained central.     

7.3 The framework is made up monthly, quarterly and annual measures and the 
Council reports by exception on all monthly and quarterly measures but has 
moved away from a ‘dashboard’ approach to one which reflects the whole 
Framework. The annual contextual measures are reported in the new Annual 
Report, which also provides an overview of the Council’s progress in 
delivering its Corporate Plan and the results of value for money 
benchmarking.

8. Performance Framework 2019/20

8.1 Targets covering a 3-year period are owned and managed by service leads 
across the authority, and are communicated to teams through service plans 
and individual performance objectives via the staff appraisal process (PEP). 
Managers have been asked to review and refresh these targets for the 
period 2019/20 to 2021/22 based upon current performance levels and 
national benchmarks, where available.

8.2 In some cases managers have proposed the removal, addition or 
amendment of performance measures. Such instances have been 
highlighted within the appendices to this report and have been considered by 
senior management.  

9. Annual Report 2018/19

9.1 The purpose of the annual report is to look back and take stock of the 
progress and achievements made against the Council’s stated objectives 
and to use this intelligence to understand what still needs to be done and 
what new challenges lie ahead. 

9.2 The annual report does this by:

 Looking at performance against targets:
 Analysing performance (and cost) against national and regional 

comparisons;
 Presenting information on the local context in which the Council operates; 

such as health factors, deprivation levels, economic indicators and access 
to housing; 

Page 21



 Outlining the financial challenges facing the authority over the course of its 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

9.3 The headline findings from this year’s annual report have been used to 
influence the targets set for 2019/20, with the expectation that a new 
Corporate Plan will be adopted later this year. 

Benchmarking Issues… Being addressed through…
Our regional ranking for the processing of 
new Housing Benefit claims and changes 
of circumstance have dropped 3 and 8 
places respectively but HB costs have 
dropped significantly from £705k to £483k 
during this period. 

Next stage of the channel shift project

Spend on CCTV is high (but has reduced) 
and crime levels remain low

CCTV project

There is a high level of relative spend, both 
regionally and nationally, on sports and 
recreation (ranked 2nd highest out of 200 
councils). Despite this, participation levels 
remain average and there has been an 
increase in the % of the local population 
who are ‘inactive’ from 19% to almost 23%. 

 New leisure contract in place. 
 Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 
implementation (including a review of 
leisure centre provision in preparation for 
the expiry of the current contract)  

The business formation rate has fallen 
from being ranked the 27th lowest in the 
region (out of 35) to the 32nd lowest at just 
over 9%. However, town centre occupancy 
is ahead of the national trend. Long term 
unemployment is in the middle quintile of 
councils nationally at 1.51%. 

Accelerated business growth and 
employment programme

High Peak’s spend on development control 
has decreased significantly and is now 
amongst the lowest 20% nationally. 100% 
of ‘major’ applications were processed, 
placing us top in the region whilst ‘minor’ 
and ‘other’ processing times dipped but 
remain above average.  

A review of the team structure is to be 
completed by July in order to ensure the 
correct level of resources is applied to 
provide higher standards of customer 
service / satisfaction.

High Peak’s recycling rate has decreased 
but its regional ranking has improved by 6 
places, taking it to the 6th highest in the 
region and the residual kg of household 
waste is the 6th lowest level across the 
East Midlands (no change). However, the 
cost of waste collection is the 4th highest of 
36 councils across the region and is 
amongst the top 20% of councils 
nationally.

New service delivery model through 
Alliance Environmental Services Ltd

The Council’s spend on public 
conveniences is 6th highest in the region.

Implementation of the Asset 
Management Plan, including a review of 
public estate

Page 22



10. Timeframe for developing a new Corporate Plan 2019-2023

10.1 The annual report, in addition to looking at performance metrics and 
comparative cost measures, also takes stock of the progress the Council has 
made in terms of delivering against its priority actions. These actions were 
laid out within the Corporate Plan under each of our four aims as specific 
objectives.

10.2 It provides an opportunity to reflect on the progress made during the last four 
years and to consider the on-going relevance of any priorities still remaining. 

10.3 The Council will be developing a new 4-year Corporate Plan covering the 
period of this administration (2019-2023) during the summer and a revised 
performance framework will follow. The proposed timetable for approval and 
publication of the revised Corporate Plan is as follows:

 June 10th – Corporate Select Committee – scrutiny of 2019/20 interim 
Performance Framework and the 2018/19 Annual Report

 July 16th – Member Workshop: Priority Setting 
 Aug 1st  – Executive to consider draft Corporate Plan 2019-2023
 September 12th – Council adoption of Corporate Plan 2019-2023
 October – Internal and external communication of new Corporate Plan 

and development of aligned Performance Framework for 2020-2021.  

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



High Peak Annual Report    

2018-2019  

P
age 25



Contents Page 

Chapter 1: Profile of the Borough – Life in High Peak: contextual information on housing provision, 
employment and skills, health issues and levels of crime 

Chapter 2: Financial Context - The financial challenges and opportunities facing local government and how 
the Council is addressing them 

Chapter 3: Our Vision - The key priorities for the Council for 2015 to 2019 

Chapter 4: Demonstrating Value for Money - Progress against our corporate priorities and how we perform 
compared to other councils  

Chapter 5: Our Priorities 2019-2020 - The Council’s roadmap for the next twelve months    

Appendices 

Appendix A: Aim 1 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix B: Aim 2 Analysis of comparative performance and costs  

Appendix C: Aim 3 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix D: Aim 4 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

P
age 26



Chapter 1: Profile of the Borough 

The Borough of High Peak covers an area of 53,915 hectares, of which 30% is classed 
as rural, and serves a resident population of 91,662 - 50.7% of which are female. 
There are 42,168 domestic households on the Council Tax valuation list in 2019.    

Who lives in the High Peak?  

• High Peak has an aging population, having seen a 39% increase in the 
proportion of residents aged 65 plus from 1991-2017. Over 20% of the local 
population now fall within this age group but the majority (30%) of High Peak 
residents are aged between 45 and 64  

• Only 4.14% of the local population is non-white, compared to 4.24% in 
Derbyshire and 20.25% nationally. Mixed or multiple ethnic groups make up 
the second largest proportion of the High Peak population at 1.04% 

• One person households make up the largest group in the Borough at over 29% 
although this is in line with national data 

• Married couples without children are higher than the national average at 15% 
• 43% of the population are educated to degree level or higher and 8% have no 

qualifications. Both these statistics are higher than the national average.     
 

What’s it like to live in the High Peak? 
 
Health - Average life expectancy is in line with the national average for women at 83.15 years but slightly below average for men at 
79.31years.   
 

• 47.51% of the population assess themselves as having ‘very good health’ and 1.12% ‘very bad health’, both of which are better than the 
national average  

• Infant mortality in High Peak is low at 2.7 deaths per 1,000 births compared to 3.89 nationally  
• Obesity levels amongst adults stand at 62.64%, lower than the national median 
• At 17.19% the proportion of the adult population who smoke is estimated to be in the middle 20% of districts nationally.   

P
age 27



 
Housing - High Peak has a housing affordability ratio of 7.98 compared to the East Midlands Mean of 7.66 (this ratio compares lower 

quartile house prices to lower quartile gross annual workplace-based earnings). The lower the ratio, the more affordable the housing. The 
average house price in High Peak was £188,110, by comparison the Derbyshire figure was £171,224 and the national average was 
£287,577. 

 
• 72.05% of households in High Peak are owner occupied, which is higher than the Derbyshire and national average 
• 12.7% of households live in social rented accommodation putting the area in the lowest 40% of areas nationally 
• As at 1st April 2019 High Peak Borough Council owned 3943 properties. 1,263 properties, approximately 20% of stock, have been sold     
through Right to Buy since 1993, with the highest (142) sold in 2000/01. 

Crime – Figures show that High Peak is amongst the lowest 40% of councils nationally for levels of crime. Since 2009 there has been a 40% 
decrease in offences, down to 343.46 per 10,000 head of population in 2018.   

Deprivation - High Peak is ranked in the middle 20% of districts nationally for its overall deprivation score.   

Employment – 65.55% of High Peak’s resident working age population are in employment, which is higher than the Derbyshire and national 
figures.   

 
• The proportion of the working age population who are long-term unemployed is 1.51%, which places High Peak amongst the middle 

20% of councils nationally  
• High Peak has a high proportion of residents working in elementary, caring and leisure occupations and an above average proportion in 

professional and technical roles. However, the proportion of residents in administrative and secretarial, skilled and process plant and 
machine operative occupations are very low compared to national standards. 

 

The following pages provide further and supporting analysis from Grant Thornton’s Place Analytics Tool on some key contextual data that 
helps the Council understand the issues facing our local population and to plan services accordingly.  

 
 

P
age 28



 
 
 

P
age 29



 
 

 
 

P
age 30



 

P
age 31



 
 

P
age 32



Chapter 2: Our Financial Context 

The Borough has faced significant financial challenges in recent years as a consequence of austerity measures along with 
cost pressures within services and greater volatility in financing streams. The shift in local authority financing is increasing 
the focus on locally generated income streams and reducing the reliance on core Central Government funding. This 
increases the control and influence the Council has over income generated within the Borough but has also made it 
vulnerable to fluctuations within the local economy, hence increasing financial risk. The table below compares council spend per capita against all 
district councils and illustrates that High Peak has the 21st lowest spend out of 200 councils nationally at £91.50 per head. The Council has 
improved its relative unit cost score under the Housing, Culture and Environmental Services expenditure areas.   

High Peak 2017/2018  (£000s) Unit Unit 
Cost 

 

Unit Cost 
Score 

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE (RO) / Population 8,424 92,063 91.50 Very Low 

TOTAL HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population (778) 92,063 (8.45) Low 

TOTAL HOUSING SERVICES (GFRA ONLY) (RO Bal) / Population 704 92,063 7.65 Very Low  

TOTAL CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 2,020 92,063 21.94 Average 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 3,319 92,063 36.05 Low 

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 934 92,063 10.15 Low 

TOTAL CENTRAL SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 2,225 92,063 24.17 Very Low 

 

P
age 33



Future challenges and opportunities 

Set out below are some of the more significant developments that have a potential impact on the financial position of the Authority.   

Changes to Local Government Finance 

The below paragraphs detail any changes or proposed changes to local government financing which have had or may have a significant impact on 
the Council’s future financial position.   

Revenue Support Grant - The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government presented the Local Government finance settlement 
2016/17 to the House of Commons on 17th December 2015. This was made in the context of the Chancellor’s Autumn Statement / Spending 
Review and included a four-year settlement offer to Authorities for Revenue Support Grant (the Local Government core grant) which confirmed the 
phasing out of the grant by 2020. The Council accepted this and the financial impact has been included in the Council’s MTFP, consequently 
2018/19 would have been the final year of revenue support grant funding for the Council. However, due the Council being part of the Derbyshire 
Authorities pilot for 100% business rates retention, the RSG allocation was reduced to zero in 2018/19 – a year earlier (see below). 

Business Rates - As part of the current Business Rates Retention system, authorities are able to retain a proportion of any growth in business rates 
over and above a centrally established baseline. The Council’s proportion is further increased by participation in the Derbyshire Business Rates pool, 
which removes the growth levy payable to Government.  

In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of reforms to the Business Rates Retention System including a move to local 
government retaining 100% of the rates that they received with an end to Revenue Support Grant (as discussed above). Following invitation from 
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, Derbyshire Authorities made an application to become a pilot area for the 100% 
Business Rates Retention. It was announced in December 2017 that Derbyshire was successful in its application for all authorities in the area to be a 
pilot for the 100% Business Rates Retention scheme in 2018/19. Consequently, the authority’s Revenue Support Grant allocation for 2018/19 was 
reduced to zero (a year earlier than anticipated), with an equivalent amount being rolled into the Business Rates Baseline Funding level for the year.  
The authority’s overall share of retention increased from 40% to 50% and the levy rate payable on Business Rates growth was zero.  

No financial assumptions were included within the 2018/19 Budget as at the time of setting the budget the pilot mechanism was yet to be 
finalised, plus the pilot is only confirmed for a period of one year. The Council has benefited from additional Business Rates income as a result of 
being a 100% pilot Authority in 2018/19   

P
age 34



Government have subsequently announced that a 75% Business Rates retention scheme will now be implemented, and during the year, 
Government invited Authorities to make an application to ‘pilot’ the 75% scheme in 2019/20. Derbyshire Authorities were unsuccessful in securing 
pilot status for a second year. 

Uncertainly remains surrounding how the new system will be phased in and in what form – the approved pilots being trialled around the Country 
will support the Government in forming the final model. Therefore, no financial assumptions based on the new system have been included with the 
Council’s financial plans after 2019/20 at this stage - these will be fed into the plans once we have more certainty around how the system will 
operate.   

There is also a risk that the new system may revisit the original ‘baseline funding level’ for Authorities – which is the amount retained by Authorities 
based on assessment of the need taking into account a number of factors. Any review may favour Authorities with Adult Social Care and Children 
Services, where there is national recognition of financial pressures, to the detriment of Borough/District Councils. 

Council Tax - The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of capping. However, the Council’s ability to increase 
Council Tax by more than a certain percentage is subject to referendum. The threshold was increased to 2.99% from 1st April 2018 (to better 
reflect CPI), and a Council Tax increase of 2.9% was applied by the Council for 2018/19. A Council Tax increase of 2.9% has also been applied in 
2019/20.    

New Homes Bonus - Proposals were presented to amend the current New Homes Bonus settlement which was a significant source of income to the 
Authority. The main changes to the scheme which came into effect from 1st April 2017 were incorporated into the MTFP, these include: - 

• The reduction in the number of years for which the Bonus is paid from the current 6 years to 5 years in 2017/18; to be followed by a further 
reduction to four years in 2018/19;  

• The removal of New Homes Bonus paid on development below a 0.4% baseline (of the overall tax base).  
 

These changes have significantly impacted on the amount of income the Authority gains from New Homes Bonus.  

The settlement announcement in December 2018 confirmed no further adjustments to the scheme in 2019/20. The announcement did, however, 
point out that 2019/20 represents the final year of funding agreed through the 2015 Spending Review and it is the Government’s intention to 
explore how to incentivize housing growth most effectively. There is, therefore, a risk that the system may change fundamentally during the life of 
the MTFP.  There will be a period of consultation on any change prior to a new system being implemented. 

P
age 35



Social Housing - The Government announced in July 2015 far reaching legislative and financial changes for the social housing sector, which had 
significant implications for High Peak Borough Council and in particular a negative impact on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). One of the most 
significant announcements was the reduction in social housing rents by 1% per annum from April 2016 for 4 years.   

As a consequence, the Council undertook a full review of the HRA during 2016/17 with a view to mitigating 
the financial impact of the changes. A Financial Improvement Plan was presented alongside the MTFP in 
February 2017 which detailed progress made to date, savings achieved, and further work to be undertaken in 
order to realise additional savings.  

The Government has since announced that from 2020/21, Authorities will be allowed to increase rents from 
2020/21 by CPI +1%. 

A revised HRA 30-year Business Plan was presented alongside the MTFP in February 2019. 

Impact of Brexit 

At this stage it is impossible to predict the impact of the Brexit process on the Authority’s finances and financial planning.  It has the potential to 
influence a number of local and national economic drivers such as inflation, interest rates, the valuation of assets and liabilities (for example the 
Council’s property portfolio and pension liability) and the demand for and funding of services.   

Currently the timing and direction of Brexit’s influence on these areas is a matter of debate. To give an idea of the potential financial consequences, 
the table below quantifies the impact on the Authority’s 2018/19 budget had there been a 1% change in its key economic drivers. 

Risk item Impact on MTFP Risk Item Impact on MTFP 

1 % change in inflation 300,000 1 % change in interest rates 400,000 

 

Brexit will also have implications on specific project funding bids which have in the past been submitted to European established bodies, it is 
unclear what/if any mechanism will replace this.      

The overall wider impact and any specific changes to Local Government finance will be further assessed within the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan.   

P
age 36



Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme 

In order to offset the projected revenue budget shortfalls, a four-year Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme for the General Fund and Financial 
Improvement Plan for the Housing Revenue Account, were presented alongside the Medium Term Financial Plan for approval to full Council on 
13th February 2017.  Full detail of this can be found on the Council’s website. 

General Fund Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme  

2017-18 was the first year of the Council’s new 4-year Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme, which targets £2.1m in financial savings by 31st 
March 2021 to offset the forecast budget shortfall and ensure the Council is financially stable. 

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy aims to both reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now more of a 
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing and no longer heavily reliant on direct government funding such as revenue 
support grant. The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the 
strategy is a tool to enable the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 

The Efficiency Programme is focused on five areas: - 

• Major Procurements - there is the opportunity to focus attention on a number of large service functions which are currently provided by 
an external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of 
these services with proper consideration of the current financial constraints. The contract commitments have sometimes restricted the 
opportunity to align services across the Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. The individual projects will focus on Waste Collection 
& Environmental Services, Leisure Management and Facilities Management. 
 

• Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in 
order to allow for the necessary capital investment. 

 

• Growth – development of a clear focus on housing and economic growth based upon the established Local Plan.  
 

• Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources of income and a drive towards identifying new sources of 
income. 

 

P
age 37



• Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, on-statutory 
services and channel shift (reducing the need for personal contact by providing technology to access services). 

 

The delivery of efficiency and rationalisation projects is monitored by the Transformation Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service and key 
officers. A Director is allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full business case appraisal is completed for each project. 

The efficiency target for 2018/19 was set at £581,000; however, due to slippage in the delivery of some projects, there is a small shortfall of 
£56,740 against target. As part of the MTFP, a review was undertaken to assess the timing and estimated value of future savings based on the 
current programme.  The table below shows the projected re-profiled Efficiency Programme: - 

 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL 

 £ £ £ £ £ 

Original Programme 310,000 581,000 430,000 810,000 2,131,000 

Amended Programme 388,000 449,000 789,000 505,000 2,131,000 

Variance 78,000 (132,000) 359,000 (305,000) - 

 

The savings achieved in 2018/19 primarily relate to additional income, savings from procurement activity, a reduction in printing and postage costs 
and efficiencies achieved via the arrangement with Alliance Environment Services. Additionally, a number of vacant staff posts have been reviewed 
(in line with the service review process and as a result of other efficiency projects) which have contributed to the overall efficiency programme.   
 
Continued progression against the efficiency programme is dependent on achieving significant savings as a result of the alternative delivery model 
for Waste, Streets and Parks via the transfer of services to trading company Alliance Environment Services, as well as a review of leisure provision.  
There are also significant income generation targets focusing on housing and economic growth as a result of implementing the Local Plan. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 38



HRA Improvement Plan 
 
When setting the budget in February 2017, the HRA was predicted to be in a deficit position of £770,430 by the end of 2020/21 due to the 
consequences of the four-year 1% rent reduction. Therefore, a HRA Financial Improvement Plan was approved which identified potential savings of 
£1.2million from a number of sources to be achieved over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21. 

A HRA Review Progress report was then presented to the HRA working group in April 2017 which further developed and provided more detail on 
the savings programme and likely profiling for the realisation of savings.  This has since been re-profiled as below: - 

 
 
 
 
 

 
During 2018/19, the efficiency target of £245,000 was achieved, which related to a reduction in the annual voluntary repayment of outstanding 
debt (reducing from £1.25m to £1m per annum).   

A full stock condition survey of the Council’s portfolio of housing properties has been completed and the results have been assessed, validated and 
prioritised.  Therefore the 30-year capital programme requirements are now understood - in terms of how much the Council is forecast to spend 
on major repairs and maintenance of its housing stock.  This has been included within the updated HRA Business Plan.    

Assuming the four-year HRA Financial Improvement Plan targets are achieved as above and updating the capital programme based on the stock 
condition survey information, results in a projected £105,140 surplus position by the end of 2022/23.   

The revised HRA 30-year Business Plan can be found on the Council’s website. 

 
 
 
 
 

HRA Review Focus 

Potential 
Annual Reduction 

ACHIEVED 
2017/18 

ACHIEVED 
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL 

Total Annual Saving 625,000 245,000 - 330,000 1,200,000 

P
age 39



Chapter 3: Our Vision 

High Peak’s 4-year Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s Vision for 2015 to 2019 - delivering excellent services to High Peak residents and 
demonstrating value for money – and is underpinned by four aims:  

 

 Aim One: To help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work – measured through 
good quality social housing provision and improved health. Our key priorities are: 
 
 An effective relationship with strategic partners 

 
 Fit for purpose housing stock that meets the need of tenants 

 
 Effective support of community safety arrangements 

 
 Provision of high quality leisure facilities  

 

In order to meet these priorities, we will… 

 Continue to influence the provision of accessible health and social care services through the Council’s Scrutiny work programme 
 Ensure the Council is compliant with the requirements of the new Homelessness Reduction Act 
 Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying value for money 

improvements for Housing Benefit processing  
 Complete and implement a Housing Management and Revenue Plan 
 Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility provision being achieved by 

other councils; in order to achieve improved health and value for money outcomes for the High Peak 
  Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed recommendations 
 Review and improve our relationships with Strategic Partners 
 

 

 

P
age 40



 Aim Two: To meet financial challenges and provide value for money – measured through a 
balanced and sustainable medium term financial position, value for money services and high levels of 
resident and customer satisfaction. Our key priorities are: 

 

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 

 Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and provided 
“right first time” 

 A high performing and well motivated workforce 

 More effective use of Council assets 
 
 

In order to meet these priorities, we will… 

 Deliver the Channel Shift Programme 
 

 Provide advice and support for residents affected by the rollout of Universal Credit across High Peak in 2018 in order to help ensure a 
smooth transition to the new system 
 

 Continue to embed good information management practices through the ASSURED Framework 
 

 Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of generating income 
 

 Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of public estate, and ensure adequate facilities management 
arrangements are in place 
 
 

 

 

P
age 41



 Aim Three: To support economic development and regeneration – measured through sustainable towns and rural 
communities and increased economic growth. Our key priorities are:  

 
 

 Encouraging business start-ups and enterprises 
 

 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 
 
 Promoting tourism 
 
 High quality development and building control with an “open for business approach” 

 

In order to meet these priorities, we will… 

 

 Market test the commercial operation of the Pavilion Gardens, including a review of the Tourist Information Centre and Tourism 
Service 

 Together with partners work for the delivery of the Buxton Crescent development 
 Support the development of Glossop Halls 
 Support the development of Torr Vale Mill 
 Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying value for money 

improvements for planning application processing 
 Implement the accelerated housing delivery programme 
 Implement the accelerated business growth and employment programme 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 42



 Aim Four: To protect and improve the environment – measured through high recycling rates, quality parks and open spaces, 
and clean streets. Our key priorities are:  

 

 Effective recycling and waste management 
 

 Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 
 

 Provision of quality parks and open spaces 
  

 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, businesses and visitors 
 

In order to meet these priorities, we will… 

 Successfully deliver Phases 2 and 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint venture company, to 
deliver waste, streets and grounds maintenance services on behalf of the Council in order to achieve improved performance and value 
for money outcomes 
 
 

 Commence the preparatory work needed to facilitate the expansion of Glossop Cemetery in 2019/20 
 

 Establish a developer open space contributions plan. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 43



Chapter 4: Demonstrating value for money - our performance and how we compare 

Summary 

At the close of 2018/19 the Council had achieved 61% of its key performance indicator targets for the year (a 5% reduction on the previous 
year) and had maintained or improved performance in 63% of these measures (-7% on last year).  

 

     
The service areas which fell short of target include speed of benefits processing, sickness absence, rent loss, planning enforcement, sports / 
leisure participation, households in temporary accommodation, and repairs performance. 

For those measures that fell below the target set for the year we have developed actions for improvement, where feasible, as part of our 
performance reporting to senior managers and members. 

 
 
 
 
 

2018/19 Targets 

Target Met

Target Not Met

Not Available

45% 
37% 

18% 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

                2018/19 Trends  

P
age 44



Aim 1: A safer and healthier environment 
 
Delivering on our housing targets: 

- Benefits processing times for new claims 
- Benefits processing times for changes of circumstance 
 Benefits processed correctly 
- Households in temporary accommodation 
- Right to buy transactions completed in time 
 Homelessness prevention 
 Gas safety checks undertaken 

 
2017/18 benchmarking evidences that High Peak’s performance in determining new Housing Benefit claims dropped a further three places 
from 14th to 17th fastest in the East Midlands region of 36 authorities (20 days). Conversely, the cost of processing benefits has reduced over 
this same period from £705k to £483k and with it our ranking has moved from 8th highest in the region to 17th, just above the regional average. 
The correlation charts in Appendix A detail those councils in the region who are achieving better performance levels at a lower cost, and these 
have been the subject of further benchmarking activity by the service area in order to understand the difference in costs. Although we missed 
our target around the use of temporary accommodation, benchmarking reveals our levels have dropped by over 27% since 2009 but are on the 
increase.     
 
Contextual Measures:  
 
 44 affordable homes came on line in 2017/18 (the 2018/19 figure will not be available until the end of June 2019)  
 196 homes stood empty for more than two years, up from 172 last year 
 64% of overpaid benefit payments were recovered 
 It took an average of 75 days to complete disabled adaptations in council owned stock (+3 days on last year) 
 3 new landlords signed up to the Landlord Accreditation Scheme (+1 net increase on previous year due to 2 sold properties)  
 43% (28/65) of housing register applicants in priority need have been waiting in excess of 6 months (+29% on last year)  

 
 

P
age 45



Delivering on community safety: 
2017/18 benchmarking again evidences that High Peak has low crime levels but the council’s spend on CCTV is amongst the highest in the East 
Midlands (9th highest spend and 22nd lowest crime levels). Authorities with similar or lower levels of crime are all reporting significantly lower 
levels of spend in this area. The CCTV maintenance contract came to an end in January 2018 and a review of the CCTV system is now nearing 
completion.   
 
Contextual Measures:  
 No data around the use of CCTV in crime detection had been provided and this indicator is suggested for removal by the Service 

 
  

Delivering on our leisure targets: 
 Level of external funding awarded to support the physical activity and sport strategy 
- Number of new sports participation programmes created in priority areas 
- Number of new volunteering programmes created in priority areas 
- Number of participants on the High Peak Walking for Health Programme  
- Number of voluntary clubs/organisations supported with funding applications 

 
The Council almost tripled its external funding target of £50k and gleaned £141,790 in external funding in support of its physical activity and 
sport strategy.  
 
2017/18 benchmarking again evidences the high level of relative spend by High Peak in order to provide leisure facilities. The Council’s spend 
on sports development and community recreation is ranked 2nd highest in the country and the highest in the region at £1.218m. The Council 
has now entered into a new contract with a new leisure partner and savings are expected over the life of the contract. The wider health 
outcomes within the High Peak also need to be considered as the Council implements its sport and physical activity strategy.    
 
Contextual Measures:  
 
 22.7% of the local population are ‘inactive’ (Active Lives Survey – April 2019) 
 13.8% of the local population volunteer in sports clubs (Active Lives Survey – April 2019) 

 
 

P
age 46



The following section highlights the progress made during 2018/19 against the Corporate Plan Priority Actions under Aim One.  

Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Continue to influence the provision of accessible health and 
social care services through the Council’s Scrutiny work 
programme  
 
 
 

 Community Select Committee 3rd October. North Derbyshire 
CCG made a presentation around the Care Closer to Home 
Programme, as well as issues relating to access to mental 
health beds following the closure of Spencer ward- further 
information was requested around access to the functional 
beds at Stepping Hill and Walton which was circulated in 
writing to members of the committee prior to the meeting on 
28th November. 
Community Select Committee 6th Feb 2019. Sport and Physical 
Activity Strategy was presented. 

Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high 
performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying 
value for money improvements for Housing Benefit 
processing  

 Report received and sent to AMT for approval for completion 
of this action – May 2019 Meeting.  

Complete and implement a Housing Management and 
Revenue Plan 

 The HRA business plan has been updated and presented as part 
of the Budget/MTFP report. The financial position is sustainable 
over the 30 years based upon updated financial information, 
including the results of the 100% stock condition surveys. 
Investment options will be reviewed post election. Action 
Completed. 

Ensure the Council is compliant with the requirements of 
the new Homelessness Reduction Act  

 Action Completed.  

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity 
strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility 
provision being achieved by other councils; in order to 
achieve improved health and value for money outcomes     

 Meetings have been ongoing with the new contractor and 
exiting contractor in recent weeks for High Peak. Relevant 
members from the Leisure Project Board (Assets, Finance, and 
Service Commissioning) met with Parkwood on 25.03.19 to 
agree a way forward in regards to outstanding R & M issues 
and compilation of compliance documentation. Our Solicitors 
remain in ongoing dialogue with Parkwood’s solicitors to 
finalise contract documentation aiming to be signed off on 
29.4.19 
 

P
age 47



Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Review and improve our relationships with Strategic 
Partners 

 Action Completed. AMT have approved the report including the 
partnership assessment tool responses. A presentation will 
now be made to Managers Forum to complete the list and roll 
out to service managers. 

Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement 
the agreed recommendations 
 

 The CCTV project is approaching the final stages.   
The next recommendations from the consultants have been 
received.  Notice has been given with effect from 01/07/2019. 
Carelink training will be arranged for specific staff. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



Aim 2: Meeting financial challenges and providing value for money 
Delivering on our effective use of resources targets: 
 Council tax and business rates collection 
 Media releases take up and social media followers 
 On-contract spend 
- Sundry debt reduction 
 Rent collection 
- Invoices paid on time 
- Efficiency savings met  
 Internal audit recommendations implemented on time 
- Procurement activity 

 
Contextual Measures:  
 141 Twitter feeds were retweeted 
 Income generated equates to 59% of the net budget (2017/18) 
 Almost £24m was levered in external funding  

 
2017/18 benchmarking again reveals that High Peak has the 10th highest Council Tax collection rate in the region (75th nationally) at 98.35% 
and is the 31st lowest spend nationally at £197k (increase from 13th lowest). Business Rates collection however remains average across the 
region at 98.74% and the Council is ranked 18th out of 36 councils (an improvement on last year). The limited benchmarking material on 
complaints levels indicates that the number of ombudsman complaints has increased from 7 to 15, and places us within the mid-20% of 
councils nationally but the picture is less clear for general complaints. A new system for managing and recording complaints went live in April 
2018 and has seen a significant reduction in the number of complaints received following the introduction of a triage approach to complaint 
handling.       
 

Delivering on our customer access and right first time targets: 
 Complaints responded to within 10 days 
 Channel shift contacts (phone, face to face and web) 
 Repeat complaints 
 FOI requests dealt with on time 

P
age 49



- Website assessment through Socitm’s Better Connected survey 
 
Contextual Measures:  
 26% of FOI requests were diverted to the Council’s website / publication scheme (up from 10% last year) 
 The cost of handling FOI requests was estimated at £25,768 
 94% of customers were satisfied with the service received from the council 
 246 complaints were received during 2018/19; down from311 

 

Delivering on our high performing and well motivated workforce targets: 
- Sickness absence per FTE 
- Appraisals completed 
 Workplace accidents 
- Reportable/lost time accidents 

 
The amount of time lost due to staff sickness absence is higher than the 9-days target for the year due to a high incidence of long-term 
sickness absence (34 cases, of which 5 were ongoing at year end). HR ensure the Council’s policy and procedures are actively used in 
addressing and providing appropriate support in the case of staff absence. Most appraisals have been completed but some slippage occurred 
in a small number of teams. Overall accident levels decreased last year and two of the four lost time accidents were non-work related.       

 
Contextual Measures:  
 We received 167 compliments last year; down from 192 
 Staff turnover was in line with last year at 9.2% 

 

Delivering on our effective use of assets targets:   
- Council-owned business units that are occupied 
- Average time from request to repair 
- Rent loss from vacant stock 
 Average time to re-let Council homes  
 IT network and system availability  

 

P
age 50



Contextual Measures:  
 It took an average of 21 days to re-let homes excluding ‘hard to let’ homes; an improvement on last year 

 
The following section highlights the progress made during 2018/19 against the Corporate Plan Priority Actions under Aim Two. 

Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Deliver the Channel Shift Programme 
 

 The Digital Strategy is currently under review. 
E billing will commence following year end. 
The environmental reporting app was looked at as part of the CGI review. This will 
be included in the new digital programme going forward, the work will be 
prioritized. 

Provide advice and support for residents 
affected by the rollout of Universal Credit 
across High Peak in 2018 in order to help 
ensure a smooth transition to the new 
system 

 Phase 1 has been completed and is now business as usual. 
Phase 2 Universal credit roll out (rents). Staff resource has been seconded to rents 
(as part of a fixed term placement). 
 

Continue to embed good information 
management practices through the 
ASSURED framework 
 

 The Assured framework is regularly publicised via Keeping You Informed and staff 
are encouraged to report data breaches. The GDPR action plan is monitored 
through the Information Governance Group.  
A number of training sessions have taken place to help key staff comply with GDPR, 
with further sessions planned for staff requiring in depth training. The online 
training package has been completed and is being rolled out to all staff on a team 
by team basis from Q1 2019-20.  
Information Asset Registers are complete and have being reviewed by audit. 
Protective Marking briefing sessions are taking place with teams as required.  
Our approach to Data Protection Impact Assessments has been reviewed following 
training and has been integrated into procurement and project management 
processes.    

Develop and implement a plan to identify 
new and innovative ways of generating 
income 
 

 A target has been included as part of the new efficiency and rationalisation strategy 
2017/18 – 20/21. Updates for various streams:  
Commercial properties - Project now closed as business as usual, the finalized 
report is being implemented. A delegated report is to be written for rental on the 
community unit. 
Fees and charges- Next review for 2019/20 budget setting/MTFP. Cash up against 
efficiency target to be undertaken during 2018/19. 

P
age 51



Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Advertising/Sponsorship -The current status being reviewed and a formal project 
board is being established. A new policy is to be written and adopted. 
 

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a review of 
public estate, and ensure adequate 
facilities management arrangements are 
in place 

 Facilities Management: An agreement to extend has been made with DCC with 3 
months notice. We have received a quote from Kier regarding the condition surveys 
proposal.  
Corporate and other relevant policies have been fed through to CIPFA for the Asset 
Management Plan.  
Team members have met with CIPFA regarding the compliance audit and the report 
has been received. A meeting took place at the beginning of February with CIPFA to 
review the current status. A system demonstration has been arranged for the end 
of April with the supplier. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 52



Aim 3: To support economic development and regeneration 
 
Delivering on our encouraging business start-ups objective: 
Our business formation rate stands at just over 9% and has been in decline since 2015 and is amongst the 
lowest in Derbyshire. Employment rates are amongst the bottom 40% nationally at over 75% but long- term 
unemployment is in line with the middle 20% of councils nationally at 1.51%.     
 
Contextual Measures:  
 3900 enterprises are operating within the High Peak; 20 less than last year 
 113 businesses supported by the Growth Hub (down on last year) 
 498 completions and 2746m2 of employment space delivered 

 
Delivering on our flourishing town centres targets: 

- Trip Advisor ratings for Pavilion Gardens 
 The borough had an average town centre vacancy rate of 7.4% - Buxton 11.5%, Glossop 2%, New Mills 11.9%, Chapel 6.2%, Whaley 

Bridge 8%, and Hadfield 2.8%. The national average stands at over 10%. 
 

Delivering on our promoting tourism targets: 
- Pavilion Gardens footfall 

 
Visitors to the High Peak added £253m of spend to the local economy according to the latest research reports and local business benefited 
from over 1.45m overnight stays. The Council’s recorded spend on tourism places it in the middle 20% of councils nationally at £38k.   
 

Delivering on our high quality development and building control targets:  
 Planning appeals successfully defended 
- % of planning enforcement cases resolved within 13 weeks  
 Major, minor and other planning applications determined in time – 100% of majors determined on time 
 Planning applications with pre-app enquiries 

 

P
age 53



 Priority planning enforcement cases visited within 24 hours 
- Agent satisfaction with the planning service 

 
2017/18 benchmarking data across the East Midlands region shows that High Peak has significantly reduced its costs of development control 
from £302k to £118k and has improved its cost ranking in the region from 16th highest to 24th (out of 36 councils) and is amongst the lowest 
20% nationally. High Peak processed 100% of ‘major’ applications on time, and is again ranked No.1 in the region but has dropped its rankings 
for minor and other applications which are now ranked 13th and 15th respectively. Examples of other councils achieving better determination 
rates at lower costs have been investigated and have been found to be based upon increased fee-income opportunities linked to local growth 
rather than cost of service.  
 
Contextual Measures:  
 No costs were awarded against the Council last year for planning appeals 
 233 customers attended the new Planning Surgeries (up from 195 last year) 

 
The following section highlights the progress made during 2018/19 against the Corporate Plan Priority Actions under Aim Three. 

Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Market test the commercial operation of 
the Pavilion Gardens, including a review 
of the Tourist Information Centre and 
Tourism Service 

 Action Completed. Formal transfer to Parkwood Leisure effective 01/02/2019. 
Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust will deliver Visitor Information services on behalf of 
the Council at The Pump Room in Buxton.   

Together with partners work for the 
delivery of the Buxton Crescent 
development 

 The final draft of the Visitor Economy Strategy and the Destination Management 
Action Plan has been published including an abridged version for consultation.   
The report was taken to the Economy and Growth committee on 22nd November. 
The draft CHAR report is being considered by the project team for later reporting. 
The Board is being established and a meeting was due to be held in March. 

Support the development of Glossop Halls 
 

 Work on the Town hall roof has commenced. Project management support is being 
provided, and the project is on track. Rental opportunities are being looked at. A 
clock specialist was due on site in April. 
 
A report on the Victoria Hall feasibility has been discussed and the 
recommendations supported by Corporate Select. The Council's Executive and the 
Victoria Arts Centre Group held a joint meeting in October to agree the way 

P
age 54



Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
forward, the report has been agreed. A community group meeting was held early 
April. 

Support the development of Torr Vale Mill  Action Closed. 
DCC and HPBC met with the mill owner and agreement has been reached on the 
wording of the Memorandum of Understanding between the owner and the Torr 
Vale Mill Building Preservation Trust. The final draft of the document has now been 
signed off by Historic England and issued to DCC’s Cabinet and HPBC’s Executive. 
This will establish the partnership arrangements moving forward to secure funding 
for a further feasibility study of the site.  

Undertake detailed process benchmarking 
with high performing / low cost councils 
with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements for Planning application 
processing 
 

 Report received and sent to AMT for approval for completion of this action – May 
2019 Meeting. 

Implement the accelerated housing 
delivery programme 

 Discussions with all relevant land owners and developers as well as DCC and Homes 
England are on-going:  
Glossop package: Plans for Glossop package are being prepared, await response 
from DCC and Sport England regarding the in principle agreement. Discussions have 
been held with DCC officers to discuss potential opportunities for joint working. A 
submission has been made for project management support to consider the 
benefits of rationalisation across HPBC and DCC. Report due for February cycle.  
Buxton package:  Homes England has visited the sites and is pleased with the 
progress. They have also met with Hogshaw and Waterswallows landowners and 
developers to carry out viability appraisals. The funding agreement documents 
have been received and forwarded to legal.  Officers continue to meet regularly 
with the developers of the site regarding land assembly. Draft designs for the 
preferred position of the roundabout have been issued, costs are being reported 
and a golf architect has been appointed. Memorandum of Understanding's are in 
place with Hogshaw developers and DCC, the MOU with Waterswallows developers 
is being finalised. 
Granby Road- Legal team are liaising with the property team and external legal 
consultants to take the contract forward. Revised HoT's have been issued to the 
developer and we await their feedback.   

P
age 55



Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Implement the accelerated business 
growth and employment programme 

 Wrens Nest: A meeting was held in March with an external company to take 
forward the discussions around options for the Council to consider supporting 
delivery of a scheme at Wrens Nest. The company have set out a number of options 
for the Council that would help with delivery of the scheme and have presented the 
market analysis and other clarifications sought by the Council in respect of each of 
the options. 
Goyt Bridge: S106 expires March 2019. A report will be written regarding the 
transfer of land, the project will then be closed. 
Chapel Masterplan: Chapel-en-le-Frith Parish Council has discussed with BE Group 
potential conditions that could be included with a conditional land sale agreement 
relating to part of the allotment site.  Any such conditions would be designed to 
ensure that development constraints can be addressed and the agreement would 
be terminable if works were not started (or completed) within a certain timeframe. 
BE Group has been instructed to liaise with Bevan Brittan on the inclusion of 
recommended conditions within a land sale agreement.  
The Parish Council is briefing potential development partners on the process for 
submission of best and final offers. 
Buxton Station:  Planning applications for the health hub and McCarthy & Stone 
development have been approved. Project managers have been appointed via the 
OPE process. DCHS is awaiting the outcome of the bid to STP programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56



Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment 

Delivering on our effective recycling and waste management targets: 
 

- % of household waste recycled (estimate) 
 Kg of residual household waste (estimate) 
 Paper consumption 
 Missed Bins 

 
 

2017/18 benchmarking ranks High Peak’s recycling rate as the 6th highest in the region (an improvement of 6 places despite the rate reducing) 
and the residual kg of household waste is the 6th lowest level across the East Midlands (no change). However, the cost of waste collection is 
the 4th highest of 36 councils across the region and is amongst the top 20% of councils nationally. There are examples of other councils 
delivering similar performance levels but at a lower cost. The above average levels of deprivation in High Peak are also shown not to have a 
direct correlation to recycling rates, with councils with similar deprivation levels achieving higher recycling rates than ourselves.    
  
Delivering on our high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health targets: 

 
 Environmental Fixed Penalty Notices issued and enviro-crime enforcements undertaken 
 Street cleanliness 
 Regulatory inspections 
 High risk premises inspections 
 Permitted processes inspections 
 Food premises that are broadly compliant with Food Standards Agency standards 
 Fly-tipping incidents (199) 
- Community clean-up campaigns (63 compared to 65 last year) 

 
Fly-tipping remains an area of concern because of the environmental impact and the drain on resources but High Peak’s rate is the 8th lowest 
in the East Midlands for 2017/18 at 393 incidents and has reduced again last year. The Council’s spend on public conveniences is amongst the 
highest of our nearest neighbours comparison group at £238k. Food hygiene in establishments across the Borough looks healthy with only 12 
premises achieving 0-2 stars and 703 premises achieving 3 stars or above. The Council undertook 18 prosecutions for antisocial behavior in 
2018/19. 
 
 

P
age 57



Delivering on our quality parks and open spaces targets: 
 

- Volunteer hours (676 up from 660) 
 Green Flag award 

 
Whaley Bridge Memorial Park was again successful in retaining its prestigious Green Flag award. Council spend on parks and open spaces is 
amongst the middle 20% of districts nationally.   
 
The following section highlights the progress made during 2018/19 against the Corporate Plan Priority Actions under Aim Four. 

Priority Action  Status Commentary – March  
Successfully deliver Phases 2 and 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint 
venture company, to deliver waste, 
streets and ground maintenance services 
on behalf of the Council in order to 
achieve improved performance and value 
for money outcomes. 

 Awaiting confirmation of phase 3 go live date in order for the consultation process 
to commence. 
 
 

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan 
 
 
  

 An Open Space Audit and Playing Pitch Strategy have been completed and forms 
part of a wider Developer Contributions SPD (Supplementary Planning Document). 
The intention is to contract this work out to a consultant and the draft specification 
is now being developed. The tender will be advertised in January 2019 with a view 
to an appointment being made in February. Following consultation, the SPD should 
be adopted by the end of 2019.  

Commence the preparatory work needed 
to facilitate the expansion of Glossop 
Cemetery in 2019/20 

 The design is well underway, Environmental Agency comments have been received 
and a plan of action has been referred back to them for approval.  Drainage is 
required for the whole site rather than the original and we are working on various 
drainage matters. 

 

 

 

P
age 58



Chapter 5: Our Future Priorities 2019-2020 

2018/19 was the final year of the 2015-2019 Corporate Plan. A new Corporate Plan will be developed, reflecting the aspirations of members 
for the Borough, during the summer with publication later this year. Some of last year’s actions may remain relevant and have been retained 
during the transitional period as we move to a new Plan for 2019-2023.   

Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Actions / Projects New Priority Actions 
Aim 1: Effective support of 
community safety 
arrangements 

Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed 
recommendations. 

To be determined as part of 
the 2019-2013 Corporate Plan 
 

Aim 1: Effective 
relationship with strategic 
partners 

Continue to influence the provision of accessible health and social care 
services through the Scrutiny work programme 

 
Aim 1: Provision of high 
quality leisure facilities 

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity strategy and carry out 
research into nil cost facility provision being achieved by other councils; in 
order to achieve improved health and value for money outcomes for the High 
Peak     

Aim 2: Services easily 
available and provided right 
first time 

• Deliver the Channel Shift Programme 
• Provide advice and support for residents affected by the rollout of 

Universal Credit across High Peak in 2018 in order to help ensure a smooth 
transition to the new system 

Aim 2: Effective use of 
resources to ensure value 
for money 

• Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income  

• Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of 
public estate, and ensure adequate facilities management arrangements 
are in place 

• Continue to embed good information management practices through the 
ASSURED Framework 

Aim 3: Flourishing town 
centres 
 

• Together with partners work for the delivery of the Buxton Crescent 
development 

• Support the development of Glossop Halls 
 

Aim 3: Sustainable towns 
and rural communities 

Implement the accelerated housing delivery programme 

P
age 59



Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Actions / Projects New Priority Actions 
Aim 3: Encourage business 
start ups and enterprises  

Implement the accelerated business growth and employment programme 

Aim 4: Effective recycling 
and waste management 

Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint venture company, to deliver waste, 
streets and grounds maintenance services on behalf of the Council in order to 
achieve improved performance and value for money outcomes 

Aim 4: Quality parks and 
open spaces 

Establish a developer open space contributions plan 
 

Aim 4: High quality public 
amenities 

Commence the preparatory work needed to facilitate the expansion of Glossop 
Cemetery in 2019/20. 

 

 

 

 

References 

The benchmarking data used within this Report has been drawn from the following sites: 

1. Grant Thornton’s Place Analytics online tool 
2. Grant Thornton’s CFO Insights online tool 
3. The LGA’s benchmarking tool – LG Inform 

 

 

 

 

P
age 60



Appendix A - Aim 1: a safer and healthier environment for our residents                      
Fit for purpose housing stock that meets the needs of tenants - The following chart shows the correlation 
between Housing Benefit costs and New Claims average speed of processing against the East Midlands Non- Metropolitan 
group. In 2017-18 costs have reduced (from £705k to £483k, cost rank has dropped from 8th to 17th) but processing times 
have increased. In 2016-17 the average speed of processing had increased from 15 to 19 days, in 2017-18 it has increased 
to 20 days (rank dropped from 14th to 17th). South Derbyshire, Harborough and Oadby & Wigston are examples of 
authorities processing claims faster at a lower cost.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 61



This chart shows the correlation between Housing Benefit costs and Change in Circumstances average speed of processing 
against the group.  High Peak costs have reduced but processing times have increased. In 2016-17 the average speed of 
processing had increased from 5 to 6 days. In 2017-18, this has increased to 7 days. The rank has dropped from 16th to 24th 
out of the group.  South Holland, South Derbyshire, Blaby and Melton are examples of authorities processing changes 
faster and at a lower cost.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 62



This time series shows the change in the number of households in temporary accommodation in High Peak since 2009. 
Overall there has been a decrease of 27.3% between 2009 and 2018 (2009: 22 households,  2018: 16 households) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 63



Effective Support of Community Safety Arrangements - The chart below shows the cost of CCTV compared 
to the total number of crimes (percentile) for the High Peak against the East Midlands group in 2017-18. Costs have 
improved compared to 2016-17 but remain high within the group at £128,000 (9th highest out of 23 councils with spend) 
but the total number of crimes remain low at 3,899 (22nd lowest out of a group of 31). Harborough, Derbyshire Dales, 
North Kesteven and Bolsover spend less on CCTV. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 64



Provision of high quality leisure facilities - This map shows which quintile (top 20%) the High Peak falls into for 
sports development and community recreation (RO) £000’s for all English districts in 2017-18. Compared to the East 
Midlands Group, High Peak is ranked as the highest spend and the second highest nationally at £1.2 million. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 65



This bar chart shows the proportion of the population in High Peak who participate in 150+ minutes of exercise per week 
(Active Lives Survey May 17/18, Sport England) compared to other districts within Derbyshire. High Peak has 66.2% of its 
residents participating in 150+ minutes of exercise per week, compared to 69.4% in Nov 16/17. The Derbyshire average 
has remained at 63.7%.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 66



This spider chart gives an overview of expenditure, income and outcomes relating to sports development and community 
recreation. In the context of all English districts, High Peak has the highest gross and net unit spend on sports and 
recreation facilities. Income from these facilities is also the highest across all council areas; however the proportion of 
residents in High Peak who participate in 1 session of sport a week is average in the national context. Aylesbury Vale and 
Oxford have similar levels of income and expenditure to High Peak but both have higher levels of participation in sports. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 67



This map shows the spend per head of population on sports development and community recreation for all English 
districts (RO, £/head 2017-18) and shows that High Peak sit in the top quintile for unit spend and ranks highest out of all 
council areas at £13.23 per head. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 68



The following chart shows the correlation between sports development and community recreation total income and gross 
expenditure against the context of all English districts (RO 2017-18). High Peak has the highest income and gross 
expenditure out of all districts nationally. Districts in the bottom right quadrant have high incomes, and low gross 
expenditure- they would be described as highly efficient in this service.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 69



Appendix B - Aim 2: Meet Financial Challenges and Provide Value for Money  

Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money - The map below shows that 
High Peak has an above average rate of Council Tax collection at 98.35%, sitting within the top 40% of districts nationally. 
In 2016/17 the rate of 98.41 % also sat in the top 40%. The cost of council tax collection is low compared to the group, 
ranked 171st out of 201 areas at £197,000; an increase from £124,000 in 2016-17. 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 70



This map shows Non Domestic Tax Collection rate across all English districts. High Peak has a medium rate of collection at 
98.74%, sitting within the middle 20% of districts nationally, no change compared to 2016-17. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 71



Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and 
provided ‘right first time’ -  The table below has been produced using LG Inform and shows the number of formal 
complaints from 2017/18 Q1 to 2017/18 Q4 for High Peak and High Peak CIPFA nearest neighbours. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 72



This map produced by CFoI shows the total number of Ombudsman complaints received by English Districts in 2017-18. 
The High Peak score has increased from 7 to 15 and sits just within the mid 20% of all districts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 73



A high performing and well motivated workforce - The chart below compares High Peak against CIPFA 
nearest neighbour and is generated using LG Inform tools. It shows the average number of days lost to sickness for each 
individual quarter during 2017-18. The figure for the year was 12.16 days against a target of 7 days.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 74



Appendix C - Aim 3: Support Economic Development and Regeneration  

Encourage business start-ups and enterprises - This time series demonstrates changes in business formation 
rate from 2010-2017. The rate of new business as a proportion of total business stock increased steadily from 9.03% in 
2010 to 11.56% in 2015 then fell to 11.1% in 2016 and 9.06% in 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 75



This bar chart shows the High Peak new business formation rate % for 2017 compared to other authorities in the area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 76



Promote tourism - This map shows the total spend on tourism across all English districts. High Peak sits in the middle 
quintile of districts nationally, spending £38,000 on tourism. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 77



High quality development and building control with an ‘open for business’ approach - This chart 
shows the correlation between the cost of development control and major application processing within 13 weeks 
compared with the East Midlands Non-Metropolitan Group. In 2017-18, High Peak processed 100% of major applications 
within target times, no change from 2016-17. Development control costs have reduced from £302k to £118k and the 
ranking within the group has improved from 16th to 24th. East Lindsay and Bolsover for example, have also processed 
100% of applications on time but at a lower spend.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 78



This chart shows the correlation between the cost of development control and minor applications processed within 8 
weeks compared with the group for the same period. In 2017-18, High Peak processed 92% of minor applications within 
target times, compared to 93% in 2016-17. East Lindsay, Bolsover, Northampton, Wellingborough and South Derbyshire 
for example are processing more applications to target at a lower cost.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 79



This chart shows the correlation between the cost of development control and ‘other’ applications processed within 8 
weeks, compared with the East Midlands group. In 2017-18, High Peak processed 94% of ‘other’ applications within target 
times, compared to 96% in 2016-17. Bolsover, Northampton, Wellingborough and East Lindsay for example are processing 
more applications to target at a lower cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 80



The map below shows the spend on development control (RO, 2017-18) across all English districts. High Peak spent 
£118,000 on development control, which places it in the lowest 20% of all districts nationally. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 81



Appendix D - Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment  

Effective recycling and waste management - This line chart shows the proportion of household waste that is 
sent for reuse, recycling or composting from 2009-2017. Within High Peak, the recycling rate has increased from 40.67 % 
in 2009 to 47.72% in 2017.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 82



The scatter chart demonstrates the relationship between deprivation and the percentage of household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling or composting and shows that there is a weak negative correlation between deprivation and the recycling 
rate in the context of all English districts. High Peak has a mid- deprivation score and a mid to high recycling rate.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 83



This chart shows residual waste per household in kilograms (2017-18) for High Peak and the individual districts within 
Derbyshire. Compared to other districts, and Derbyshire as a whole, High Peak has low amount of residual waste per 
household. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 84



This map shows the unit spend on Waste Collection per dwelling in 2017-18, across all English districts. High Peak has a 
very high unit spend at £54.98, falling into the top 20% nationally. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 85



This scatter chart shows the correlation between the cost of waste collection and the kg of residual waste per household.  
Oadby & Wigston, Derbyshire Dales and South and East Northamptonshire are examples of areas producing less residual 
waste at a lower cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 86



This scatter chart shows the correlation between the cost of waste collection and the % of household waste sent for reuse, 
recycling or composting. Derbyshire Dales and South Northamptonshire are examples of areas with a higher recycling rate 
at a lower cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 87



Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health - The table shows the 
number of fly tipping incidents in 2017-18 compared to the 10 nearest neighbours from the East Midlands Group. Compared to 
the whole East Midlands group, High Peak were ranked 29th lowest (out of 36) with 393 incidents, this compares favourably to 
2016-17 when they were ranked 27th lowest with 488 incidents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 88



This chart shows the cost (in £ 000’s) of Public Conveniences (RO) compared to the 10 nearest neighbours from the East Midlands 
group in 2017-18. High Peak have the 6th highest spend in the group at £238,000, a decrease compared to £248,000 in 2016-17.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 89



Provision of quality parks and open spaces - This map shows the cost of open spaces in 2017-18 across all English 
districts. High Peak are ranked 119th out of 200 areas at £645,000. In 2016-17 High Peak were ranked 109th at £737,000. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

   

 

P
age 90



1

Appendix 2: Performance Targets 2019/20

High Peak Performance Framework 2019/20

P
age 91



2

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work
Measure Reported 2017-18  

Result
2018-19 Result 2018-19 

Target
2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

Objective: Fit for purpose housing stock that meets the needs of tenants

Housing Benefits Processing: Time taken to 
process a) new claims b) change of 

circumstances

Monthly a) 19.01 
b) 6.57 

a)25.64
b)9.65

a) 18 days
 b) 7 days                                   

a) 18 days 
b) 7 days

a) 18 days 
b) 7 days

a) 18 days 
b) 7 days

Number of households in temporary 
accommodation

Monthly 16 19 15 15 TBD TBD

The additional duties of the homeless reduction act have seen an increase in the use of TA. We 
are aware that the MHCLG are looking to implement national performance targets for reducing 

TA which will link to funding and it would be preferable to wait until these are known before 
setting 2020 and onwards

NEW: % of cases resolved without 
progressing to a full homeless case.

Monthly N/A 97.3% 95% 95% TBD TBD

We are aware that the MHCLG are looking to implement national performance targets for 
prevention & relief duties which will link to funding it would be preferable to wait until these 

are known before setting 2020 and onwards
Number of gas safety checks overdue Monthly 0 0 0 0 0 0

a) Number and b) % of Right to Buy 
transactions completed within statutory 

timescales

Quarterly a) 47
b) 98%

a) 59 
b) 98.3%

100% 100% 100% 100%

% of active housing register applicants in 
priority need (classes A and B) who have 

been registered in excess of 6 months 

Annual 13.7% 43.07% Establish 
new  

Baseline

15% 15% 15%

P
age 92



3

Measure Reported 2017-18  
Result

2018-19 Result 2018-19 
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

Housing Benefits Processing: % of cases 
determined correctly (as measured by the 

LA error rate)

Annual 99.78% 99.8% 99.5% 99.5% 99.5% 99.5%

Objective: Provision of high quality leisure facilities 

Level of external funding awarded to 
support the physical activity and sport 

strategy and number of bids made

Quarterly £0 £141,790 33% 
success 

rate. Min 
£50k 

33% 
success 

rate, Min 
£60k

33% 
success 

rate, Min 
£60k

33% success 
rate, Min 

£60k

Number of voluntary clubs/organisations 
supported with funding applications

Annual NEW 1 4 4 5 6

Number of new sports participation 
programmes created in priority areas

Annual NEW 1 5 3 4 5

Number of new volunteering programmes 
created in priority areas

Annual NEW 0 3 Establish 
baseline

TBD TBD

We are still in the infancy of delivering programmes in the priority areas identified for each council, and 
have been affected by staffing issues throughout the year; therefore we have not been in a position to 

meet the targets set in 2018-19. By setting a baseline in 2019-20, it would give the team time to refocus 
their efforts in the priority areas we have commenced work, leading to the targets being reviewed for 

2020-21.
Number of participants on the High Peak 

Walking for Health Programme
Annual 3380 3450 (estimated) 3500 3550 3600 3650

P
age 93



4

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money
Measure

 
Reported 2017-18 

Result
2018-19 
Result

2018-19
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

Objective: Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and provided 'right first time'

No./% of interactions :
    a) phone b) face to face c) web

Monthly a)64000 40% 
b) 39696 25% 
c) 58203 35%

a)68618 40%
b)41108 24%
c)62072 36%

a) 40%
 b) 25%
 c) 35%

a) 37% from 
35%

b) 23% from 
20%

c) 40% from 
45%

a) 35% from 
30% 

b) 20 % 
from15% 

 c) 45% from 
55% 

a) 35% 
b) 20% 
c) 45%

Slight change to % for 19/20 as we continue to roll out the facility to self serve across all 
service areas

Avoidable contact (number taken from 
customer portal) 

Annual NEW Not 
Available

Establish 
New 

Baseline

TBD TBD TBD

IEG4 adding facility to report on avoidable contact - available June 2019

Satisfaction with customer services (Joint 
Alliance Measure)

Annual NEW 93.75% Establish 
New 

Baseline

92% 92% 92%

The PI will measure the average of the responses to 4 questions relating to ‘satisfaction with 
customer services’ 

Complaint handling: % dealt with within 10 
working days

Monthly 97% 97% 97% 97% 97% 97%

Complaint handling: % of repeat issues 
(compares previous month only)

Monthly 4% 2% 5% 5% 5% 5%

P
age 94



5

Measure
 

Reported 2017-18 
Result

2018-19 
Result

2018-19
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

FOI requests: % responded to within statutory 
time frame and numbers received

Quarterly 99.25% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Website Quality: Socitm Better Connected 
assessment

Annual 3 stars 3 stars 4 stars 4 stars 4 stars 4 stars

Objective: More effective use of Council assets

Average time from request to repair (DLO) Monthly 13.23 days 13.29 days 12 days 13 days 
from 12

13 days 
from 12

13 days

The target of 12 days has not been achieved since this PI was implemented. A target of 13 
days is more realistic and is still challenging

DELETE-% of responsive repairs for which an 
appointment was made and kept

Monthly 99.18% Unavailable 100% 100% 100% 100%

DELETE- % of jobs (DLO) undertaken by 
appointment for non-priority 1 work

Monthly 78.59% Unavailable 75% 75% 75% 75%

NEW: Average Number of jobs completed per 
operative per day

Monthly N/a 4.64 N/a 4.7 4.75 4.8

% of rent lost due to vacant stock Monthly 1.04% 1.15% 0.86% 0.86% 0.86% 0.86%

Average time taken to re-let Council homes Monthly 28.9 days 25 days 25 days 25 days 25 days 25 days

NEW: % properties with nil void loss Annual N/a 12.6% N/a 15% 15% 15%

% and number of council owned business 
units occupied

Annual 83% 
(24/29)

86% 
(25/29)

 89.6%
(26/29)

86% 
(25/29) 

89.6%
(26/29)

89.6%
(26/29)

Amended 2019/20 target to 25/29 as there is no demand currently for the retail units in 
Fairfield View and they are unlikely to be re-let. 

 IT- % network availability Monthly 100% 100% 99% 99% 99% 99%

P
age 95



6

Measure
 

Reported 2017-18 
Result

2018-19 
Result

2018-19
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

IT- % system availability Monthly 100% 99.93 % 99% 99% 99% 99%

Objective: A high performing and well motivated workforce

Average days sickness absence per FTE (show 
split between short and long term) 

Monthly 12.16 days 10.62 days 9 days 9 days 9 days 9 days

Average days sickness absence per FTE across 
the Alliance

Monthly NEW 8.31 days 9 days 9 days                   9 days                   9 days

% of Appraisals completed across the 
workforce (of those due- Joint Alliance 

measure))

Annual 84% 66%  100% 100% 100% 100%

Number of a) workplace accidents and b) 
RIDDOR reportable / Lost Time (7days) 

accidents  

Annual a) 28 b) 5
Joint

a) 23 b) 4 a) <28
b) 0

a) <23 
b) 0

TBD TBD

Objective: Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money

 Number of press releases and %  taken up in 
local media

Annual 40 issued        
95% take 

up

48 issued 
98% take 

up

90% 94% from 
90%

94% from 
90%

94% 

Number of twitter followers Quarterly  3,665 3,919 3800 4050 from 
3950 

4200 from 
4100 

4350

Number of Facebook followers Quarterly 832 1,392 932 1600 from 
1200

1800 from 
1400

2000

Increased future targets as 2018/19 exceeded existing target

Collection rates: Business rates Monthly 98.74% 99.09% 98.1% 98.1% 98.2% 98.2%

Collection rates: Council Tax Monthly 98.35% 98.43% 98.1% 98.1% 98.2% 98.2%

P
age 96



7

Measure
 

Reported 2017-18 
Result

2018-19 
Result

2018-19
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

Collection rates: Rent Monthly 98.22% 98.55% 98.5% 98.5% from 
98.6% 

98.6% from 
98.7% 

98.7%

Since September, the number of Universal Credit claimants has risen from around 40 to over 
200 and we are anticipating a larger increase this year, we would therefore like to monitor 
rent collection for a further 12 months with the target remaining at the 2018/19 level.  We 

have also had issues with the timing of payments following the start of new claims, and delays 
from requesting managed payments (direct to the Landlord from DWP) to actually receiving 

the payment.  These issue may escalate on 2019/20 would therefore prefer to use 2019/20 to 
monitor the full impact of the roll out.

Collection rates: Sundry Debt (value of SD 
over 60 days old) 

Quarterly £182,065 £184,464.62 5% 
reduction

5% 
reduction

2% 
reduction 
from 3%

2% 
reduction

The sundry debt figure has significantly reduced over last two years, therefore an ongoing 
reduction of 5% is more difficult to achieve.

% of invoices paid in line with contract Monthly        96%  95%   96%                                        96% 96% 96%

Use of Contracts register - annual contract 
spend as % of gross expenditure budget

Quarterly 73% 83% 5% 
improvement 

to 17/18

2% 
improvement 

to 18/19 
(from 3%)

2% 
improvement 

to 19/20 
(from 3%)

2% 
improvement 

to 20/21

Over achieved against 18/19.  Out turn was +5% higher than target. 19/20+ reduced as we’re 
getting to the point that we won’t be able to improve much more

% of procurement activity on the 
Procurement Forward Plan (Joint Alliance 

Measure)

Quarterly 71% 64% 72% 72% from 
75% 

74% from 
75% 

75%

Achieved 64% for 2018/19, have therefore reduced target to 72% for 2019-20. 

% of internal audit recommendations 
implemented within timescale (snapshot of 

year to date)

Quarterly 96.81% 97.54% 97% 97.5% 98 % 98.5%

P
age 97



8

Measure
 

Reported 2017-18 
Result

2018-19 
Result

2018-19
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

External Audit Opinion Annual Unqualified Unqualified
Q3

Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified

% of corporate efficiency savings met Annual 100% 70.3% Q3  100% of 
target

100% of 
target

100% of 
target

100% of 
Target

a) Expenditure variance to budget
b) Income variance to budget

(HRA & GF)

Annual GF a)-5%
b) 10%

HRA 
a)-13%
b) 3%

GF Q3 
a)1.74%
b)8.34%
HRA Q3
a)6.59%
b)0.24%

Net Budget 
+/- 5% 

variance

Net Budget 
+/- 5% 

variance

Net Budget 
+/- 5% 

variance

Net Budget 
+/- 5% 

variance

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration
Measure Reported 2017-18 

Result
2018-19 
Result 

2018-19 
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

Objective: Flourishing town centres that support the local economy

Pavilion Gardens - Trip Advisor ratings (% 
good / excellent)

Quarterly 95.19% 92.16% 93.75% 93.75% 94% 94.25%

P
age 98



9

Measure Reported 2017-18 
Result

2018-19 
Result 

2018-19 
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

% of empty town centre shops Annual Glossop
(3.6%), 

Hadfield
(2.8%)    
Buxton
(7.5%), 

New Mills 
(7%),     

Whaley 
Bridge 
(4.3%)
Chapel 
(5.1%). 

Average 
5.6%

Glossop 2%; 
Buxton 11.5%; 

New Mills 
11.9%; Chapel 
6.2%; Whaley 
8.0%; Hadfield 

2.8%; 
Borough 

average 7.4%

Borough 
vacancy 
rate of 

<8%

10.1% 
(national 
average) 
from <8%

10.1% 
(national 
average) 

<8%

10.1% 
(national 
average)

Objective: Promote Tourism

Pavilion Gardens - footfall  Quarterly 617,305 Q1 143.5k , 
Q2 223.6k , 
Q3 115k ,

 Q4 64k Total 
546,600  

Q1 172k , 
Q2 220k , 
Q3 129 , 
Q4 80k 

Total 601k

Q1 170 
from 175k , 

Q2 220 
from 222k , 

Q3 130 
from 131k , 
Q4 80 from 

82k 
Total 600 
from 610k

Q1 173k, 
Q2 222k, 
Q3 131k, 
Q4 82k 

Total 608k

Q1 175k, 
Q2 225k,  
Q3 131k, 
Q4 85k 

Total 616k. 

P
age 99



10

Measure Reported 2017-18 
Result

2018-19 
Result 

2018-19 
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22 
Target

Objective: High quality development and building control with an open for business approach

Planning processing times a) Majors b) 
Minors c) Others

Monthly a)100% 
b) 94% 
c) 93% 

a)100%
b)92%
c)97%

a)90% 
b)85%  
c)90%

a)90% 
b)85% 
c)90%

a)90% 
b)85% 
c)90%

a)90% 
b)85% 
c)90%

% of planning applications with pre-
application enquiries

Annual 13% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

% of major developments allowed on 
Appeal

Monthly N/A 0% 10% 10% 10% 10%

% of minor and other developments 
allowed on appeal

Monthly N/A 1.38% 10% 10% 10% 10%

Agent satisfaction with Planning Service 
(amended survey) 

Annual 70% 70% 80% 80% 80% 80%

% of planning enforcement cases resolved 
in 13 weeks

Annual 90% 80.6% 90% 80% TBD TBD

The target of 90% has proved ambitious and has been unachievable following staffing issues 
within the team. The target should be aligned across both authorities at 80 % to be reviewed in 
subsequent years following the recent addition of a temporary resource (the target within Staffs 
Moorlands is 70%). The  Enforcement Plan (adopted by both Councils) which although does not 
make a specific recommendation for performance identifies the need to resolve most cases 
within 13 weeks, therefore a 80% target is reasonable. 

% of priority 1 planning enforcement cases 
visited within 1 working day

Annual 100% 100% 90% 90% 90% 90%

P
age 100



11

Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment
Measure Reported 2017-18 

Result
2018-19 
Result 

2018-19 
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22
Target

Objective: Effective recycling and waste management

Recycling rates / Residual waste per 
household

Quarterly 47.7% 
430.06kg

48.5%
429.37kg

50%
455kg

50% from 
51% 

445kg

50.5% from 
52% 

 440kg

51%
435kg

2018-19 result is estimated as Q4 data has not been fully received. 

Missed bins per 100,000 collections (exc. 
customer error and bad weather)

Monthly 51.13 38.85 40 38 from 39 36 from 38 34

It is proposed that the calculation should also exclude blocked access as a result of road works 
or parked cars as such issues are outside of the councils’ control. Hence the target has been 

reviewed taking account of this change
Objective: Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health

% of 'high risk' premises (A-C) inspected per 
annum

Quarterly 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

% of routine permitted process premises 
inspected

Quarterly 100% 100%  100% 100% 100% 100%

% food premises compliant with FSA criteria 
(plus numbers as context) 

 Annual 98% 98% 98% 98%  98%  98%

Number of fly tipping incidents collected by 
the Council (exc sec 46 waste) 

Monthly 438 199 400 199 from 390 195 from 
380

190

P
age 101



12

Measure Reported 2017-18 
Result

2018-19 
Result 

2018-19 
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22
Target

This indicator records the no. of incidents reported to the council. Whilst enforcement activity 
may discourage fly tipping behaviour, the number of incidents reported to us is outside of our 

control. Continuous improvement is therefore difficult to achieve
Anti-Social Behaviour enforcements by type 
(including behaviour adversely affecting the 

environment) 
a) number of warnings issued 

b)number of fixed penalty notices issued
 c) number of Community Protection 

Notices issued 
d) number of prosecutions

Monthly NEW
a)20

b)142
d)6

e)18

a) 25
b)70
c)2

d)Contextual

a) delete
b)contextual

c) delete
d) contextual

a) delete
b)contextual

c) delete
d) contextual

a) delete
b)contextual

c) delete
d) contextual

Remove a) and c) (see below).  B should be changed to a contextual measure. It is really a 
measure of activity and a high or low figure could represent a good outcome - the democratic 

and community service area’s annual report to council will provide the wider context in which to 
understand the relevance of the actual figure.

Street and environmental cleanliness 
inspection results (% achieving top grades 

for cleanliness)

Annual 94.8% 93.92% 86% 90% from 
89%

90% 90%

A 90% target is more realistic and still challenges the Service Area to ensure that schedules are 
in place and adhered to.

Number of community clean-up campaigns Annual 65 63 80 75 from 85 85 from 90 85

Previous target was overly ambitious. This new target is more realistic.

Number of pest control contracts Annual 10 12 12 14 16 18

Private water supplies - % of sampling 
programme completed

Annual 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

P
age 102



13

Measure Reported 2017-18 
Result

2018-19 
Result 

2018-19 
Target

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target

2021-22
Target

Pollution measures - air quality: % 
compliance against national reporting 
requirements in relation to air quality  

Annual 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Customer satisfaction with regulatory 
services (environment)

Annual N/A No survey 
carried out

Establish 
Baseline

TBD TBD TBD

Objective: Provision of quality parks and open spaces

Green Flag awards maintained Annual 1 1  1 1 1 1

Friends / Community Groups – no. of 
volunteer hours

Annual 660 676 750 750 from 800 800 from 
850

800

With ongoing support and existing campaigns this PI should continue to improve.

Objective: Promote environmentally sustainable policies and practices

Paper consumption across the alliance Monthly 2408
reams

2470
 reams

2500
reams

2000
reams

2000 
reams

2000 
reams

P
age 103



14

Appendix 2: Contextual Performance Indicators 2019/20 (No Targets)

 Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work

1. Housing Benefits processing: % of overpayments recovered

2. Disabled adaptations – average end to end time in council stock

3. Landlord Accreditation Scheme - Numbers signed up to scheme

4. Cost of CCTV per capita -delete

5. CCTV: a) no. of data downloads for the police b) number of resolved offences due to CCTV- delete

6. Costs of leisure centre provision per household

7. External leverage from grants £ for £- delete

8. Number of voluntary groups supported

9. Levels of inactivity among local population

10. Number of volunteers within local sports clubs (Sport England’s Active Lives Survey)   

P
age 104



15

 Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

1. The number of empty homes

2. Number of twitter re-tweets

3. % of FOI requests diverted to the website / publication scheme

4. The cost of dealing with FOI requests

5. Complaint handling: Number received

6. Average time taken to re-let Council homes excluding hard to let properties

7. Customer Feedback: Level of compliments

8. Staff Climate Survey

9. Staff turnover rate 

10. % of income generated against net budget

11. External funding levered annually

P
age 105



16

 Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration

1. Number of affordable homes delivered

2. Local Plan Delivery:  Number of completions for homes: sqft of employment space delivered

3. Number of businesses supported by the Growth Hub (fair proportion across partnership)

4. Number of enterprises operating in the area (considering business starts as well as deaths; as recorded through ONS stats)

5. Cost to the Council per Market (Subsidy

6. Visitor spend in the area

7. Pavilion Gardens net subsidy

8. TICs online hits

9. Total tourist bed spaces

10. Total overnight stays (tourism)

11. Planning application processing costs

12. Costs awarded against the council from planning appeals

13. Number of attendees at Planning Surgeries

P
age 106



17

 Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment

1. Anti Social Behaviour – number of prosecutions

2. Cost per household of waste and recycling service

3. Cost measures: cost of public conveniences

4. Cost of street cleansing service

5. Cost measures: Environmental Health Service

6. Number of premises in each of the 6 food hygiene star rating gradings (from 0 to 5)

7. Cost of parks and open spaces per capita 

8. Net income per car parking space

9. Parking PCNs issued and % collected

10. % of car park spaces accredited with Park Mark

11. Number & % of disabled bays within car parks

P
age 107



18

Appendix 3: Deleted Performance Indicators 2019/20

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work
Performance Indicator Reason for proposed deletion 
Homelessness: % of cases prevented Replaced in Q3 2018-19 with new more appropriate measure. 

Cost of CCTV per capita The CCTV investment is fixed so the PI should therefore be deleted (Council decision re CCTV).

CCTV: a) no of data downloads for police b) 
number of resolved offences due to CCTV

This is a measure of police requests rather than crime detection or prevention. Suggest instead 
that commentary on CCTV is included in the annual community safety report to council.

External leverage from grants £ for £ It is proving difficult to get reliable information from partners so the PI should therefore be 
deleted.

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money
Performance Indicator Reason for proposed deletion 
Housing Quality Network assessment When we explored this it was felt the cost was disproportionate to the benefits we might 

achieve and should therefore be removed. 
% of responsive repairs for which an 
appointment was made and kept

This information is not available due to ongoing IT issues. No upgrade to existing IT is planned so 
this PI cannot be reported on.

% of jobs (DLO) undertaken by 
appointment for non-priority 1 work

This information is not available due to ongoing IT issues. No upgrade to existing IT is planned so 
this PI cannot be reported on.

Customer Service Excellence accreditation We are not proceeding with the formal accreditation and will be focusing on embedding the Ican 
make a difference culture.

Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment
Performance Indicator Reason for proposed deletion 
Customer satisfaction with street 
cleanliness 

Survey was not undertaken in December 2018 and there are no plans for citizen’s survey this 
year.

Customer satisfaction with public toilets Survey was not undertaken in December 2018 and there are no plans for citizen’s survey this 
year.

Customer satisfaction with waste and 
recycling

Survey was not undertaken in December 2018 and there are no plans for citizen’s survey this 
year.

Anti-Social Behaviour enforcements by type Democratic and Community Services will produce an annual report that will indicate the level of 

P
age 108



19

(including behaviour adversely affecting the 
environment) 

a) number of warnings issued 
c)number of community protection notices 

issued 

activity and this information is provided regularly to Exec / Cabinet.

P
age 109



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Appointments to Outside Bodies
	Appendix A
	Sheet1


	5 Performance Framework 2019/20 and Annual Report 2018/19
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


